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B SRAEEARRERNEERKHERNEREERERLEMH(RERRLREVE) RIAAZH - 3EZE2009F12A31H
HFEERBEOEMH(BEERLEDE) EREHNFER ZHEE BB ARE21,900,0007T « Fi2 6 FRE HZOFHERA
NEIAER2008F 12 AWM RAE ([T ARG KT ZR@KF#HE -

REZE2009F 12 A31HIEFE  AEERKBEEVRH(BEHELERES) AT EREEEITHRLTEL A ARKES,440,000
7_|: °
BRERBHE

H2008F 11 288 » AR FEAR AR Y ABFEE DR - HIRA=F - B2009F1A18EZ2011F12 8318 ([ AERE R
#D - REAERERS  AEEBRAPEEEE THREARNERNEMEEREARE - SiEE2009F 12831 AL FEREA

REZE2009F12 A31 B IEFE - AEEFRE O EATIEEE NS MESEL B AR 38,450,000
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ﬁ%ﬁ B AR 5 (48)
BEEMEEHR
20085F 11 828R @ AARIEARABF WBEERIEER S - BRA—F - 5200951 A 1H£LZE2009F12 A31H (E(DBEE
miHEmR])  c REBOAEEMESHE  A5EETHERRAPREREEHREBEER - BIEE2009F 12 A31HILFEHEERA
EREREHNFERSEHL%HARE20,000,0007TE:] A A REE30,000,0007T  BAAE @ HE i RIEFTR 5 ERAFFBER
T ARERANRRBHA2000F11 A25BEHAEHIEE -

PREZE2009F12A31H ILFE - AREREEEREM T EEEWENATTENASARE,750,0007T -

6.  2009:NR KRB
20084F11 28R - ARAIMEENBARIFRERRLEHEARAA([FRERM ) BFRAFERGLR) AR AR FIEEIH])
(HAARRIBEAL) I AKARE RS - BIIRA—F - 520094181 HEZE2009412 4318 ([20093% RixRE R - 1R
1E2009FA% RRE R - PRARAEAPRAFEERKIAR S HERHEE  MPRAFEaTE  HRHEERRRMEENE
FER(EA] - PBRERLINZSEABHETRAFHE - EZE2000F12 A3 1 AL EFEREAKAERBHNFEERSEE
MFEFEEABD BT EBEL AR 114,000,0007T % A K 40,000,0007T 2009 @B REOFBER+Z A RSP IHE -

REZE2009F12A31HILEFE - FREGHEBAKSETRERAFT IMNNESEMEENERAES B4 A ARE47,866,50070
B AR#13,444,5007T ©

7. HREERSHEHR
72008511 A28H « ARAIEAPERSERAGRAF(HERERSAA D (EARARMEAD)IIVHERE - BRAS—F - 8
20094F1 B1HEZE2009F 12 A31HIE(THREESHERZ]) - REPREESHERR  AEEETHEBEEHERILRPRER
HBEMARERENARL  WERBHRESHERENRA - GKRRGHESIEPRES AR L HERS Mg A—F - 8
2009F 1 A1HE2009F 12 A31HIE - HEZ2009F 12 A3MHEFENAS LEBERE(TREAREEER) EREHET
HBiAH A RH10,000,0007T © FIEESHERENFIBEN A A SHIEE -

REZE2009F 12 A31H IEFE - AEERARRAEBRFTEES I IHNESELNAARKES,255,2007T °
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EZEHEw)

Fril
8.

10.

1.

B RR 7 (%)

2009 80K EBIEREE thh R

2008511 A28 + ARAIEREREZERRGR AR XD (HAARRRBEA L) LB FBRERS - BRA=ZF - 8
20094F1 A1 HEEZE2011F12 831 H 1L (200988 K EAIEREE ez 1) o RIR2000808 F B SRS 3% - A58 BERMIAS R = SRS X
BHER - ERBRR DR EHE (8 ERAR (A ARE(8) DERE - 3EZE2009512 A31 B IEFEIRE R =14 & R TEEIR
FERXHBETEBL AKE127,000,0007T 2009808 EHIERE BRAFFIEN T Z A RE KT BB h#5E

REZE2009F 12 A31H IEFE - REEREBHE EEREESMHNE S L A ARESS,580,0007T °

2009 48 R ER B 175 =2

2008411 A28 + AARIER] AT £ ( HF)(EAARRARBEA D) FIRERKERZ - HRA=F - B2009F1A1AEE
20114F12 A31 B 1L ([ 20098 4R ERE R 1) o RIB20092 MR ERE 2 - NEBEIMBSIRIT A8 ( B BaTrEREa 0
A B8 RERAER - BLEIZ2009F 12 A31 H IEFERBERERERFEHRNFER KT BB ARE1,500,000,0007T
2009 BRI HANFEBN T ZAAE R T - ABKFHE -

REZE2009F 12 A31H IEFE - AEERFEBERERR AR % LE) B 5L A ARE906,000,0007T °

20093 B BE BRCRHER S thh 38

#2008F 11 288 + AN A RIEAR ORISR MMmAEE(RZ)BER AR ([AI AR (R5E) ) (K AR AR BEA L) T IERRBE SR R
iz - BRA=% - B2009%1 A1 BAEE2011512 831 IE([2009FFHBL SRR B 1725 1) © RIR2009FFHRBE SRAHR B 17728 -
A OATE () REABBE AT O (R5) £/ ) B4R S B ERMmEEERESRHRAEEFREN D HREE - #EE
2009412 A31 B IEFEREIEMBA SR R EI FE X SRS THIBAI AR H1,900,000,0007T © 2009 FF 5Kk Es BRRHRAE i 1
FHERTZAASRTZABEPHEE -

REZE2009F 12 A31H IEFE - ANEE G IEMEE U M °] O Al 44 (SR8 SEE X (RS L A AR1,107,500,0007T °

2009 =T EEMBHREB R

20084611 H250 - KEF AL AR AR ([ REZEMM D (RARQRINMEAR) BRXREHLIAEARAR (I
(HARRRBEAT)HEFR200148 AT LM BEMEHRERAED - BRAMFZTTEAR - B2009F1A1HEZE20114F10
A3181E([20095 T B R RHERIE R ]) © IRIB200950T B EMEHRE R - SOTI AR ZEIMMALE 0 EM R R AN T
BR75 - BEZE2009F 12 A31 B LFERECEMHEREBRNFERSTHETEBBA AR 170,000,0007T © =T BEMEHERE
BEMER T A ASER T ABEPHEE -

REE2009F 12 A31HIEFE - REERMRFEE MR TIZINEES5L A ARK77,000,0007T °
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FrAEPRE AR 5 ()

12. A AIAEEREB R
720092 A248 - ARARIMEEMBLARIFEEHRMORYNERAR(THES® ) E XTI A RMAERAR( LEX
TD(EARQRBEAL) LA A R - HBR 8200992 A24B#E2011412A31 AL ([AT A JgiRBE s 1) o RIEA] A
feiREE R - PREFEA OFRTREAREERRE RO AR - HEE2009F 12 A31 A IEFEREAI A EERBINFE
R G RGN BA) AR H30,000,0007T © A ] fEERHE B MR BN AR R H B R2009F2 A24 A A S K EE -

REE2009F 12 A31HLIEFE - PrESTREBI IR SR T HNES5E4 A ARE6,6850007T °

13. BEERRBHR
20093 A118 - FRERMEFRAF IV EEEREEHZ - BIRB2009F3 511 BEZE2009612 4318 [L([ B2 ERKE
e l) - RBERELEBHE  PREGEATRAFNRELEELANSHEHEHEE  MPRANKEEEINES HRIFEEE
EERMEENETER - IEIE2009F 12 A31 AL FERBEREMERBPNFER S5 TEB AR 10,000,0007T © ¥
HEMREHENFEBNAR T BEA2009F3 A 1M BNAEFHEE -

REZ2009F12A31 A IEFE - WEREEEERRBHAELERS -

14. YEEERYEEERBEHE
200911 A28 + AARIEFRAT R LYHERERYEEERGEHE([MEEERYMEEEREHZE]D) - BREN2011F12
A31BEIEH - BIEMERERYMETERGRZ - AEEETHKESMTREEEHEEFTERBEANRBERMNE)NE TWEER
ERNAEREE - FRREENTSNAEERSREMETIERY - WEBIREMNE KRS L HMERRS - BEZE20095F12
AAIEFENHES REEERAERTENFERAERTHEEAREA40,000,0007 - WEHERMEERRBEHENFERARR
AIHEIR20095F 11 A2HM R EH#HE -

REZE2009F 12 A31HIEFE - AEERFREESNNESREEERANB SN AARE12,600,0007T °

15. HERERFEBEHER
200911 A250 + AR EIEFPERFE VERKERS ([PREREERZ]) - BREMN2009F12A31HEIE - BRIEFIEE
miRERE  AEEBRATREEREEZENT  FEREGERAEHERSHE - BREE2009F12A3 1B L FERBHBERE
RIEETFER SR THEAA R50,000,0007T © FIEEMAEERZEAFERAA R BHA2009F11 25BN A EFHE -

REZE2009F12A31 B IEFE - REEEpREAMERM TR EE MBS EL R/ ARE20,780,0007T °
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FRRE BRI AZ 5 ()

16.

17.

18.

19.

BHEARE
201061 A18H S FEPBAF IV AHERREFMAER([&EAER]) - BAIREN20105F12 A31 BEE « IREBLHEE

Rl - RiE S F AR IR AIRTRE tenone B MR INESE R AL R EHE R AW - MPRAIREE FEHEREENRERS
BT HEEAEMEENETMSEEER(REER]) - 2SHEBRLATRSTINBHPREAFMHE - BEZE20105F
12 A3V BIEFERBREROTERFER 58 RIERE R 9 5T BB AR 40,000,000t & A K #20,000,0007T © &84
M BERARAR BRI A2010F1 B18AM AL HIFE -

Em&HETR

M201043A9H » fiERMEREETULR) EHAR AR ([HAER) ) (K RARRRIEA £) TS E M #H i ([ ERLH
Wakl) - HIRAR2010F12 A31 A2 - RIBERKHE R - PRRAGAEN QL) RE N EERABEERNERBMIHE &
D LR BEREREER DN ERRRARERMEENE TER((HEMEHEER]) - EZE2010512A31B LFE
KRB NEREAREMNENFER ZERERREHE MK D BT\ ARES50,000,0007T & AR #10,000,0007T ° 2 mAEH
BN A LR B EIR2010F3 A9HHIAEF I

g E R ER

M2010F3 1908 » PRRBZEMEPEETE L ERGE  BH#FE2ARAB—F([HRBBEHRERE]) - RETEETEME
i PREREZESATEEZEEEHBEHEES - REE2010512A31B LFENHESHEERBAFEIZHEETRBA
FE#100,000,0007T © FIEETEHEHZENFER AR B HER2010F3 198 RERHE -

hEEEMER R

72010F3 8198 - pIRB%EE I RFEETAH AL ELBARQA(NWWRABTED (KAKXARREEA L) IERGH - B
BEEZHRAH—F((PRAZEMERH] - BEPREERERS  PRAZEESALREEREBEVEEER - BEE
2010512 A31 B IEFE HEE DR A E R TBEHFEE A S TR AR 10,000,0007T « FIEREHERRENFBENAAFH
HA2010F3 A19BMAEFRHEE -
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B IFTEREEMBZE2009F 12 A3V BIEFE 2 D EN R 15EFEMER S - WHRBZSHERERHT) -
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RIE ERRBNE14A3BEIRTE - NARZRBALRASEEREET G AT A(EBIREREER)DEM005 [ EZRETH M
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1. BESARFESTSIE
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INDEPEND ENT

Auditors’ Report
& AZ SRR

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z ik

To the shareholders of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of China Foods Limited set out on
pages 115 to 224, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BTERERAERATDEBRR
(REREZMERINERAR)

AEHMEEZPERMARARIEHNEISERE
FRAEMY SRS - ERBRENR2009F12A31H
WG E RARMBERRARAREBEZA L FENEE
WAZRE « SREEEBARE - HRERAEHRENL
RERERER  URFBEEHHREZME RE A
AR EE

5 LI R P AR M AT

BERRESARERBEESHIAGEMNEEY
BMELARBERAEPINEERT - REAE
BERTH2INZERNBERS < WRETRERT &
pe X AR A EDER R - AR K E BN THET
BT E AR B TS S NPT B IR sk s T 8
HMEASERRA  EENEREE NS B LIR
BERIEH R E AT -

A% S hil Y AT
AEBEE RSB SOBY - WS RE
BRE R  ARBAHRE B985 FEREA
REH0KABM TR - BYMEMBAL - A
BRETERARENEMETLBATE FFASE
EfE -

AZBENRREE S A EMHO T ERBCERE
TER - RFERREAZBEIAE TIRTRE - I
RERBITEZ  NABRREXEUBRS M ESE
RFEERERAL ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
B EE R )

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

29 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED

Income Statement

AR WA R R

Year ended 31 December 2009

EHZE2009F12A31HILEFE
Notes 2009 2008
5T 20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
REVENUE WA 5 16,823,475 14,240,283
Cost of sales SHERAK 6 (12,122,493) (10,741,784)
Gross profit EH 4,700,982 3,498,499
Other income and gains E b A K Wz 5 176,954 177,934
Selling and distribution costs HEB ALY HEKAR (3,301,814) (2,543,377)
Administrative expenses THE (623,670) (451,247)
Other expenses Hip 6 (9,262) (19,093)
Finance costs [EEEYD N 7 (53,927) (31,382)
Share of profits of associates e NG | 60,438 124,996
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBEATER 6 949,701 756,330
Income tax expense FriSRipIs 10 (229,396) (136,251)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEHR 720,305 620,079
Attributable to: E(ETT
Owners of the Company iN/NEIEZ DN 11 568,081 483,427
Minority interests LB R 152,224 136,652
720,305 620,079
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ARARHEEAER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY SRER 14
Basic and diluted: ERRHS -
— For profit for the year — FE R HK20.35 HK17.32
cents &l cents (L

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in

note 13 to the financial statements.

FRREN R BURA S F BRI SIS M T 135%5E -

PEEREMRAT 2009FERE 115



CONSOLIDATED

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Are EEWATRR

Year ended 31 December 2009
EHZE2009F12A31HILEFE

Notes 2009 2008
FiEE 2009F 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEF 720,305 620,079
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip2mEUA
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINERREZ
of foreign operations =58 30,140 285,234
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHMEEEA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B HKRHE) 30,140 285,234
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEXHEBALE
FOR THE YEAR 750,445 905,313
Attributable to: FE(L T
Owners of the Company RABHEA A 11 596,725 716,119
Minority interests DHRR R R 153,720 189,194
750,445 905,313
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CONSOLIDATED

Statement of Financial Position

Are LR

31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

Notes 2009 2008
s 20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M R NEE 15 3,100,717 2,434,472
Investment properties BEYZ 16 20,103 69,884
Prepaid land premiums A Line 17 213,551 156,502
Deposits for purchase of items of property, BEME - BERRHEER
plant and equipment paiEn 14,239 33,157
Goodwill [EES 18 1,641,854 1,409,342
Other intangible assets i aE 19 43,257 36,639
Interests in associates NS/ o 21 446,952 411,951
Available-for-sale investments A ERE R
and related advances DiElEERE 22 206,596 211,355
Held-to-maturity investments BAEZIHKRE 23 98,252 -
Deferred tax assets REFIEAE 31 26,811 31,365
Biological assets EMEE 24 92,242 86,643
Total non-current assets FMBEERE 5,904,574 4,881,310
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 25 2,846,497 2,628,857
Accounts and bills receivables FEUBR TR M ZE i 26 1,080,537 884,499
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNRIE - e AR 646,955 479,338
Due from fellow subsidiaries BEIIEPNGIVES 38 4,417 230
Due from the ultimate holding company St S UL UNCIUSE 38 5,314 5,994
Due from the immediate holding company HEREERARIRK 38 355 160
Due from associates i NCTDNE 21 993 2,771
Tax recoverable Ay E R T 17,022 5,790
Investments at fair value through profit or loss WAFEIABRZRE 27 16,728 9,228
Pledged time deposits A E BITF R 28 29,345 3,002
Cash and cash equivalents He R4 EEER 28 1,943,103 1,546,684
Total current assets MENEERE 6,591,266 5,566,553
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBARE
Accounts and bills payables JEBER M ZE R 29 916,302 860,851
Other payables and accruals HibEFE R ER A& 2,288,087 1,983,809
Due to fellow subsidiaries VSEESG)=NGIE e 38 794,141 440,993
Due to the ultimate holding company IR B A% N R FRIE 38 34,352 13,731
Due to related companies REG:E N R IE 38 455,766 365,898
Due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries PN e 38 5,679 -
Due to associates KB N B FRIE 21 102,291 71,273
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITER N HEMER 30 303,092 247,955
Tax payable FEHRIE 29,330 26,397
Total current liabilities mENEEEE 4,929,040 4,010,907
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,662,226 1,555,646
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERABEE 7,566,800 6,436,956
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

REMBRR TR )
31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

Notes 2009 2008
B3k 200945 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EELERRBEE 7,566,800 6,436,956
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 30 500,000 -
Due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries NG G S e 38 128,508 73,136
Due to the ultimate holding company RER IR A B IA 38 22,715 22,679
Deferred income IRIEUT A 13,334 8,686
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE 31 17,104 7,481
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 681,661 111,982
Net assets BEEFE 6,885,139 6,324,974
EQUITY %N
Equity attributable to owners AAREEA
of the Company AR A
Issued capital BEITRA 32 279,151 279,138
Reserves HEfE 34(a) 5,107,408 4,705,973
Proposed final dividend R AR HIRR B 13 96,340 107,189
5,482,899 5,092,300
Minority interests DERRER 1,402,240 1,232,674
Total equity e ] 6,885,139 6,324,974

Qu Zhe
i
Director
EF
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CONSOLIDATED

Statqment of Changes in Equity
e AR E K

Year ended 31 December 2009

EHE2009F12A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
AATREAER
Employee
share-based
compensation Exchange Proposed
Share  reserve fluctuation final Minority Total
Issued  premium 8 Capital  Reserve reserve  Retained  dividend interests equity
apital  acount  HRAZE  reserve funds  EXEE profits B Total  JERE R&
BEIRE ROEER  FHRE 2486 ke B REEH  RERS @zt B BE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i AL AL AL AL AL AL FERL FER FER FERL FER
At 1 January 2008 2008517418 279,138 3,660,432 3060 (419907) 126,085 237,093 547138 125612 4558651 1,074,850 5633501
Total comprehensive income
for the year FERENALE - - - - - B A - T619 189194 905313
Contributions from minority
shareholders PIRRHE - - - - - - - - - 4,950 4,950
Transfer from retained profits BREENEE - - - - 55,667 - (55,667) - - - -
Equity-settled share option
arangements RALEBRERS 33 - - 10,135 - - - - - 10,135 - 10,135
Cancellation of share premium RGRETHE - (3660432 - 3660432 - - - - - - -
Final 2007 dividend paid EIR00TERERS - - - - - - - (15612)  (125612) - (125612)
Interim 2008 dividend paid BR008ERERE 13 - - - - - - (66,993) - (66,993) - (66,993)
Proposed 2008 final dividend HR2008ER SRS 13 - - - - - - (107,189) 107,189 - - -
Divicends paid to minority shareholders 4 &RE % ke - - - - - - - - - (36,320) (36,320)
At 31 December 2008 #2008512A318 279,138 -+ 13195% 3240525+ 181752¢  469,785*  800,716* 107,189 5092300 1232674 6,324,974
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

FEREBE®REK D)

Year ended 31 December 2009
EHZE2009F12A31HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREARE
Employee
share-based
compensation Exchange Proposed

Share  reserve fluctuation final Minority Total
Issued  premium [} Capital  Reserve reserve  Retained  dividend interests equity
apital  acount  RAZE  reserve funds  EXEE profits B Total  JERE R&
BEIRE ROEER  FHRE  S4RE ke B REEN  RERS Azt & BE
Notes HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Hit AL FAL FAL FAL FEL AL AL AL AL AL AL
At 1 January 2009 200951718 279,138 - 13195 3240525 181,752 469785 800716 107,189 5092300 1232674 6324974

Total comprehensive income
for the year ER2ENEE - - - - - 28,644 568,081 - 596,725 153,720 750,445

Contributions from minority
shareholders DEREHE - - - - - - - - - 4,665 4,665
Transfer from retained profits BRTEHER - - - - 1,720 - (11,743 - 23) - 23)

Equity-settled share option
arrangements RrsEERERE 3 - - 8,753 - - - - - 8,753 - 8,753
Exercise of share options TiEERE 3 13 826 (201) - - - - - 638 - 638
Acquisition of a subsidiary ke B AR 12 - - - - - - - - - 50,900 50,900
Final 2008 dividend paid BiR2008EREMk 2 13 - - - - - - - (107,189)  (107,189) - (107,189)
Interim 2009 dividend paid BIR009EERE 13 - - - - - - (108305) - (108305 - (108305
Proposed 2009 final dividend HR000ER SRS 13 - - - - - - (93400 96,340 - - -
Divicends paid to minority

shareholders AYERELMARE - - - - - - - - - (397190 (39.719)
At 31 December 2009 20095124318 279,151 826 21747F  3240505F  193472*  A98429* 1152409* 96340 5482899 1,402,240 6,885,139
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$5,107,408,000  *  ZEREHREBREAFMBMRARPHOEE FHE

(2008: HK$4,705,973,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED

Statement of Cash Flows

AN A BE i‘%
,Z“, BIRETnE
Year ended 31 December 2009
EHZE2009F12A31HILEFE

Notes 2009 2008
B 20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEKHRERE
Profit before tax MR R A 949,701 756,330
Adjustments for: FETFBE EH R
Finance costs [ELE- NN 7 53,927 31,382
Share of profits of associates FEARES & A RLEF (60,438) (124,996)
Interest income FBUA 5 (21,117) (16,578)
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments BB A 5 (31,736) (41,850)
Dividend income from investments BATEINAERZIEE
at fair value through profit or loss ZREEUA 5 (581) (92)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investments BATEIABRZIRE
at fair value through profit or loss ZATER), R 5,6 (1,734) 10,158
Net gain arising from changes SEMEENTEEEES
in fair value of biological assets R RIS 6 (5.491) (12,369)
Impairment of receivables FEMFIER(E 6 1,501 4,657
Equity-settled share option expense MR 4 B AR R 2 6 8,753 10,135
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAh & 6 4,369 3,312
Depreciation e 6 291,369 208,698
Fair value gain on investment properties BEYEZ A HEE 5 (3,711) (4,656)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - B MR
plant and equipment BEZER 6 2,328 4,278
Impairment of items of property, L EN B
plant and equipment BEZRE 6 1,510 -
Recognition of prepaid land premiums BREN LS 6 5,477 4,654
Provision against inventories FERHE 6 51,932 48,618
Government grants EOSRGEEY) 5 (33,049) (28,904)
1,213,010 852,777

PEERERAT 2009FEERE 121



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
RERSRER®)

Year ended 31 December 2009
EHZE2009F12A31HILEFE

2009 2008
200945 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,213,010 852,777
Increase in inventories FEEM (144,233) (571,362)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts FEUER AR =4
and bills receivables (£ w (83,569) 167,070
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FERZIE - Re R E A pE
deposits and other receivables FIE (gm) SR (84,859) 33,293
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from BEIEVNGIVAES
fellow subsidiaries () wmD (4,183) 16,588
Decrease/(increase) in amounts RN TR R
due from the ultimate holding company wA () 681 (1,391)
Increase in amounts due from the HEERATRK
immediate holding company N (195) -
Decrease in amounts due from associates Bt R RIRFOR L 1,781 3,449
Decrease in accounts and bills payables FE R R ZE R (48,905) (4,714)
(Decrease)/increase in other HibpES AR ESaE
payables and accruals CRid) /g0 (13,456) 368,872
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries UNEESGIEPNGIE =Rl 352,158 70,794
Increase in amounts due to related companies R BAE N B FIEEN 89,210 67,509
Increase in amounts due to the R B YRS N A)
ultimate holding company TIEE NN 20,581 918
Increase in amounts due to associates IR N B FRIEIE N 30,879 68,192
Decrease in amounts due to minority USENEIRS G E
shareholders of subsidiaries IR (5,668) -
Cash generated from operations ARSI S 1,323,232 1,071,995
Interest received BUFIE 21,117 16,578
Interest paid BRFLE (53,952) (44,871)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BAEEFIER - 9)
Mainland China tax paid B R B IE (230,173) (168,061)
Net cash flows from operating activities IRABETREE A 7 I SRR 1,060,224 875,632
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

FERERER®)
Year ended 31 December 2009
EHZE2009F12A31HIEFE

Notes 2009 2008
Fi 5 20094 20084F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net cash flows from operating activities B EIREE A 7 I SRR 1,060,224 875,632
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHZRETRE
(Increase)/decrease in pledged time deposits EREEEFR () R (26,317) 669
(Advances to)/repayments from
available-for-sale investments AMEEERE (B5) 8K (31) 2,912
Dividends from associates B N AR A 42,844 55,073
Dividends received from BRI EERE
available-for-sale investments 2B 31,736 41,850
Dividends received from investments BN TEI AR R Z
at fair value through profit or loss BB ZIRE 581 92
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BELEREEE
plant and equipment FTiS A 22,064 18,397
Purchases of investments at fair value through B AR AT BEIAER
profit or loss ®E& (2,639) (2,561)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BARBREDEGE (98,252) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries e B P B 1 A 12 (176,951) -
Acquisition of an associate Ui — B & A R = (161,057)
Additional investment in an associate A — B & QB 2 BEIMNEE (74,389) (29,775)
Purchase of investment properties BAREME = (3,394)
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BER
plant and equipment HHEER (516,650) (438,752)
Additions to other intangible assets HEHMELEE 19 (10,203) (21,159)
Additions to prepaid land premiums FEfS - H 238N 17 (20,050) (24,776)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits for purchase BEME - BERERHEER
of items of property, plant and equipment 2GR EM) 18,918 (20,504)
Additions to biological assets H YA BN 24 (108) (2,204)
Government grants received BT R 37,747 27,870
Net cash flows used in investing activities BRI S R F5E (771,700) (557,319)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
RERSRER®)

Year ended 31 December 2009
EHZE2009F12A31HILEFE

Notes 2009 2008
ik 2009F 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @EZBH2HEHRE
New bank loans FILIRITER 1,199,786 577,652
New other loans T E M E R 120,292 454,361
Repayments of bank loans EZIBITER (867,047) (732,936)
Repayments of other loans EEHMER (251,932) (471,129)
Contributions from minority shareholders DYRRE LA 4,665 4,950
Dividends paid BERRE (193,945) (192,605)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries SR ENS G E 5N (39,719) (37,466)
Increase in payables FEAT I N 192,694 164,722
Decrease in amounts due to R AR D IR FKIE
minority shareholders of subsidiaries SR (58,821) (6,354)
Exercise of equity-settled share options FT{ERR A 45 A A 32 638 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities E&EBIEA /(FrA) 2R EmFE5E 106,611 (238,805)
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERBLEFEREREM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRE 395,135 79,508
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#7B & MRS EEEE 1,546,684 1,396,563
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ RS Eh 5 25 1,284 70,613
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR FRZAERBESEHEER 1,943,103 1,546,684
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERAESEEBERDN
Cash and bank balances R4 RIRTTAEER 28 1,864,691 1,523,927
Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months AR RA3MEAAEE 2
when acquired KR E BiTE R 28 78,412 22,757
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position and MBRARERERER
of cash flows Friz RekReEEER 1,943,103 1,546,684
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STATEMENT

of Financial Position

BT IR ISR

31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

Notes 2009 2008
Ff5E 2009F 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment BB k&t 15 1,074 -
Interests in subsidiaries NN P 3 20 6,183,859 6,004,584
Held-to-maturity investments REZIHKRE 23 98,252 -
Total non-current assets EMEEERE 6,283,185 6,004,584
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNRIR - e AR 8,186 4,059
Investments at fair value through profit or loss  1ZAF(EFIABZR Z18E 27 12,072 7,204
Due from the immediate holding company BEREERARRR 38 165 165
Tax recoverable EEE = 1,715
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS EEER 28 32,036 19,968
Total current assets MEVEEEE 52,459 33,111
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HibEFE R ER A E 29,774 3,726
Total current liabilities nEBERAE 29,774 3,726
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENVE EFE 22,685 29,385
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EELERRBAE 6,305,870 6,033,969
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERRITER 30 500,000 -
Total non-current liabilities EmEaERE 500,000 -
Net assets BEFE 5,805,870 6,033,969
EQUITY R
Issued capital BTN 32 279,151 279,138
Reserves B 34(b) 5,430,379 5,647,642
Proposed final dividend BURAKR AR S 13 96,340 107,189
Total equity N 5,805,870 6,033,969
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NOTES TO THE

Financial Statements

BTSSR i vt

31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The Company is a subsidiary of COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. Based on the confirmation of
the board, the ultimate holding company of the Company is COFCO
Corporation (formerly known as COFCO Limited), which is a state-
owned enterprise registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC").

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

o production, sale and trading of grape wine and other wine
products;
o processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling beverages

and distribution of still beverages;

o distribution of retail packaged cooking oil and other consumer
food products; and

o production and distribution of chocolate and other related
products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, biological assets, certain available-for-sale
investments and investments at fair value through profit or loss, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2009. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted

for using the purchase method of accounting. This method involves
allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Acquisitions of minority interests are accounted for using
the parent entity extension method whereby the difference between
the consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )
31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

22

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18 Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and

HKAS 39

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs
(October 2008)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Vesting
Condlitions and Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18
Revenue — Determining whether
an entity is acting as a principal or
as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement —
Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes
Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

22

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS
1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8, the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies how
an entity should report information about its operating segments,
based on information about the components of the entity that is
available to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their performance.
The standard also requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the geographical
areas in which the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s
major customers. The Group concluded that the operating segments
determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are the same as the business
segments previously identified under HKAS 14. These revised
disclosures, including the related revised comparative information, are
shown in note 4 to the financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and
disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard separates
owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in
equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with all non-
owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition, this
standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with

all items of income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together
with all other items of recognised income and expense recognised
directly in equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group has elected to present two statements.

2.2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )
31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(FRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 5 included
in Improvements
to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

HK Interpretation 4

(Revised in December

2009)

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters?

Amendment to HKFRS1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters*

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Business Combinations’

Financial Instrumentss
Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues?

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items’

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirements

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners!

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments*

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to Sell
the Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary’

Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of
Hong Kong Land Leases?
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1,
HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard or interpretation.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity.
The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group
and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less
than 20% of the joint venture's registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over the joint venture;
or

(0 an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS
39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20%
of the joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint
control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group

has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant

influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in associates except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transfers. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates

is included as part of the Group'’s interests in associates and is not
individually tested for impairment.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
represents the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after

1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as an asset, initially measured at cost
and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. In
the case of associates, goodwill is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after
1 January 2005 (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of

in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Gooawill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
retained profits in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3,
such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated retained profits
and is not recognised in the income statement when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost

of acquisition of an associate (previously referred to as negative
goodwill), after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

The excess for an associate is included in the Group’s share of an
associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, biological assets, financial assets, investment properties, and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset'’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii)
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(@} the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or any of its holding companies;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in () or (d); or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing

the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it

is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.

24

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

2.8% t0 16.2%
4.5% 10 25%

Buildings
Plant, machinery and equipment

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified

to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)

held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

24

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of eight years.

Biological assets

The fair value of the grape vines is estimated by reference to
independent professional valuations using the discounted cash flows
of the underlying biological assets. The expected cash flows from the
whole life cycle of the grape vines is determined using the market
price of the estimated yield of the agricultural produce, being grapes,
net of maintenance and harvesting costs and any costs required to
bring grape vines to maturity. The estimated yield of the grape vines
is affected by the age of the grape trees, the location, soil type and
infrastructure. The market price of the grapes is largely dependent on
the prevailing market price of the processed products after harvest,
being crude grape wine.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
investments at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held to maturity investments and available-for-sale investments

as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the

case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and bank balances, accounts
and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due from group
companies and related companies, quoted and unquoted financial
instruments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to
sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. The
reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement as other operating expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-
maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement as other operating expense.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised , at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement in other operating expenses and removed
from the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income statement as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets whether the
ability and intention to sell them in the near term are still appropriate.
When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intent to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans
and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the
definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
The reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity
date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category,
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised
over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price

for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using an appropriate valuation technique. Such a
technique include using a discounted cash flow analysis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence

of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)

and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is

a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other income
and gains in the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at

fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or ""prolonged” requires judgement.
"Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” is evaluated against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss, which is measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset

is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement

in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and loans and
borrowings. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group'’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to group companies and related
companies, and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories, other than the agricultural products which are measured
in accordance with the accounting policy for “Biological assets”
above, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value

is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the

higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

24

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to
match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(0 agency commission, on an accrual basis;
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(d) from the rendering of services, in the period in which the
services are rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(f) compensation income, when the right to receive payment has
been established;

(9) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established;

(h) proceeds from the sale of investments, on the transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and

(i) tax refunds, when the acknowledgement of refunds from the
tax bureau has been received.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose

of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for options
granted after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the

fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes-Merton
option pricing model, further details of which are given in note 33 to
the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with

a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group
or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction
awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided to certain staff employed by the
Group. In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group’s Hong Kong employees enjoy retirement
benefits under either the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO") Scheme,

or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under which employer
contributions have to be made. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to both schemes are at a maximum
of 10% of the monthly salaries of the employees. When an employee
leaves employment prior to his or her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by

the Group may be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Exempted ORSO Scheme. However, in respect of

the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, only the employer voluntary
contribution amounts are refundable to the Group when the members
leave employment prior to their contributions vesting fully. The
Group’s mandatory contributions vest fully with the employees when
the employees leave employment.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme which

is operated by the relevant authorities of the provinces or the local
municipal governments in Mainland China in which the Group's
subsidiaries are located. The Group contributes to this scheme in
respect of its employees in Mainland China and such costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for long
service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the
event of termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make
such payments in the event that such a termination of employment
meets the circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision has not been recognised in respect of such possible
payments, as it is not considered probable that the situation will result
in a material future outflow of resources from the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation

of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned

on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the board are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in an annual general meeting. When these dividends are
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association and bye-
laws grant the board the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling

at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the
income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at

the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends by certain subsidiaries
according to the relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of dividends.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2009 was HK$1,641,854,000 (2008: HK$1,409,342,000). More
details are given in note 18.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31
December 2009 was HK$Nil (2008: HK$6,742,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2009 was HK$403,445,000
(2008: HK$253,893,000). Further details are contained in note 31 to
the financial statements.

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on an assessment of the
recoverability of accounts and other receivables and the timing of
their recovery. The identification of impairment of receivables requires
management judgement and estimation. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact on the carrying value of accounts and other
receivables and the amount of impairment/write-back of impairment
in the periods in which such estimates have been changed.
Impairment of receivables of HK$1,501,000 (2008: HK$4,657,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year.
The aggregate carrying amount of accounts and bills receivables, and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2009
was HK$1,727,492,000 (2008: HK$1,363,837,000).

Estimation of fair value of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are stated at fair value less point-of-sale
cost. This requires an independent valuer’s assessment of the fair value
of the biological assets. Changes in conditions of the biological assets
could impact the fair value of the assets. The carrying amount of the
Group's biological assets at 31 December 2009 was HK$92,242,000
(2008: HK$86,643,000). More details are given in note 24.
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4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on the nature of their operations and the products and services
they provided. Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a
strategic operating unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other
operating segments.

The Group has five reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the wines segment is engaged in the production, sale and
trading of grape wine and other wine products;

(b) the beverages segment is engaged in the processing, bottling
and distribution of sparkling beverages and distribution of still
beverages;

(0 the kitchen foods segment is engaged in the distribution
of retail packaged cooking oil and other consumer food
products;

(d) the confectionery segment is engaged in the production and
distribution of chocolate and other related products; and

(e) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group's
corporate income and expense items.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable operating segments.

The chief operating decision makers of the Company review the
Group's internal reports periodically in order to monitor the results of
its operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment result.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair

value through profit or loss, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, the amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &3k (%)
(CONTINUED)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the EENHHEHZHERERREE=EUER
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing TEETIHE 2 BEET -
market prices.

Corporate
Kitchen and others
Year ended 31 December 2009 Wines Confectionery Beverages Foods ARK Total
BZ2009F12A318 L FE EE KERR Rt BRERE ity A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FET FHT T
Segment revenue: AU
Sales to external customers HETINRER 3,196,819 519,699 7,098,488 6,008,469 - 16,823,475
Intersegment revenue 2 EpRE IR - - - - 30,711 30,711
Other revenue Hiplhas 39,461 6,280 54,839 17,208 10,074 127,862
3,236,280 525,979 7,153,327 6,025,677 40,785 16,982,048
Reconciliation: Fa)
Elimination of intersegment
revenue s SRk (30,711)
16,951,337
Segment results AEELE 585,697 (60,002 ) 386,956 18,644 (37,197) 894,098
Reconciliation: HiR
Interest income FBMA 17,356
Dividend income RSN 31,736
Finance costs BB A (53,927)
Share of profits of associates FEfRBEE RRIEF - - 60,438 - - 60,438

Profit before tax TR A 949,701
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AR R Bt o)

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

4. KEESWER(B)

Kitchen Corporate
Year ended 31 December 2009 Wines Confectionery Beverages Foods and others Total
BZE2009F12A31A L FE il KERR BRt BERR DRAREM ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FET FET
Segment assets AWEE 3,700,619 456,873 4,662,377 1,477,517 3,850,136 14,147,522
Reconciliation: #hk
Elimination of intersegment
receivables s 2 BRI B OR (4,114,915)
Interests in associates N HSUNTIPR 3 - - 446,952 - - 446,952
Unallocated assets ROWEE 2,016,281
Total assets BEE 12,495,840
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,479,050 310,641 3,760,652 1,821,246 504,501 8,876,090
Recondiliation: Hk
Elimination of intersegment
payables s SR TR (4,114,915)
Unallocated liabilities KO E 849,526
Total liabilities BafE 5,610,701
Other segment information: Hitt &R
Impairment losses recognised/
(reversed) in the income RRARRERRE
statement B8/ (BE) (288) 1,591 2,080 (237) - 3,146
Provision against (write-back of
provision against) inventories 7 E (BEEE) 4,417 29,792 17,938 (215) - 51,932
Fair value loss on investments
at fair value through BATER AR
profit or loss BARNTEEBL - - - - 3,134 3,134
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 95,946 17,867 179,640 2,886 4,876 301,215
Capital expenditure BEARX 149,432 6,266 345,868 13,796 31,566 546,928+
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * EEARAZBEABEWE  BERR

equipment, intangible assets and investment properties (including assets
from the acquisition of a subsidiary).

B BVEE RAVE(SREKE
—HENEARNEE) °

PEEREMRAT 2009FERE 159



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
I Rs IR bt o)

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

4. e ()

Kitchen Corporate
Year ended 31 December 2008 Wines Confectionery Beverages Foods and others Total
BZ2008F12A318 LFE BR KERR 7] BERR ARRHEM af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FET FET FET
Segment revenue: AU
Sales to external customers HWETINREF 2,789,979 364,591 4,573,520 6,512,193 - 14,240,283
Other revenue Hidzs 49,222 14,683 47,468 9,909 (1,868) 119,414
2,839,201 379,274 4,620,988 6,522,102 (1,868) 14,359,697
Segment results Pk 569,024 (121,199) 228,534 4,869 (77,032) 604,196
Reconciliation: B -
Interest income FSBA 16,578
Dividend income EEMA 41,942
Finance costs ﬁﬂﬁﬁ?m (31,382)
Share of profits of associates FEARTE SR RIEF - - 124,996# - - 124,996
Profit before tax BATRF 756,330
Segment assets AWEE 3,603,620 465,662 3,763,022 906,726 3,789,941 12,528,971
Reconciliation: #k
Elimination of intersegment
receivables i 2> EPF FE UK (4,079,900)
Interests in associates REER —JZP&m - - 411,951 - - 411,951
Unallocated assets KOBAE 1,586,841
Total assets BEE 10,447,863
Segment liabilities pax:ih=li 2,647,508 265,338 3,290,615 1,364,228 353,267 7,920,956
Reconciliation: B
Elimination of intersegment
payables ki Pzl AT ) (4,079,900
Unallocated liabilities KoEBE 281,833
Total liabilities BafE 4,122,889
Other segment information: Hitto3BEHR
Impairment losses recognised/
(reversed) in the income RIRARRHERRE
statement B8/ (BE) (140) 3,169 1,040 588 - 4,657
Provision against inventories FERE 1,181 28,776 10,300 8,361 - 48,618
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 85,919 18,142 105,217 1,748 5,638 216,664
Capital expenditure BRRY 173,428 1,047 308,838 1,471 16,786 501,570
# Included an income representing an excess of fair value of net assets # BEBBWE —RBEQRNEWEEEE

acquired over cost of HK$40,902,000, in relation to an acquisition of
an associate (note 21).

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

Over 90% of the Group’s customers are located in Mainland China
and all revenue of the Group is derived from operations in Mainland
China. The board consider that it is impracticable to allocate the
revenue and segment results to geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

AR AR Bt o)
31 December 2009
2009412 B31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade

discounts, during the year.

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

HAp AR HFIAT

WA~ HAt e A B3

WA (KRB 2 S 558 TR A FENBRER

ERESHHMENEEHERERFE -

Group
AEE
2009 2008
20095 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Other income Hiplg A
Gross rental income el Agzs 4,307 8,573
Bank interest income HRITH WA 17,356 16,578
Interest income from held-to-maturity
investments FEZREIRE 2 FLE A 3,761 -
Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments A ERE 2 BB E 31,736 41,850
Dividend received from investments at BRATEIABRZ
fair value through profit or loss ’& 7B E 581 92
Government grants* T B * 33,049 28,904
Compensation income mEWA 34,150 15,082
Tax refunds B 891 28,106
Others HAith 32,548 21,975
158,379 161,160
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of by-products and HERIEMREMIER Z
scrap items Iz 9,186 9,815
Foreign exchange differences, net MEN =58 - $50 810 2,303
Fair value gain on investments at BRAFEIABREZ
fair value through profit or loss ®E 2 N EK 4,868 -
Fair value gain on investment properties (note 16) $&& W% > AT @z (FEH16) 3,711 4,656
18,575 16,774
176,954 177,934

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.

BEABZEMY 2 RERGIFRRANE

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
I Rs IR Mt o)

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B A i ¥ )

AEE 2 BRBATRFI TG, (GEA) FHI%

18 :
2009 2008
20095 20084
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold EHFREKA 12,076,052 10,705,535
Provision against inventories FTERE 51,932 48,618
Net gain arising from changes in fair value HYEEATEE
of biological assets FITEE £ HY RS (5,491) (12,369)
Cost of sales SHEE B 12,122,493 10,741,784
Auditors’ remuneration A G| 3,800 3,985
Depreciation (note 15) HrEa(MisE15) 291,369 208,698
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 19)  HfhEAZ& E# S (H3E19) 4,369 3,312
Recognition of prepaid land premiums (note 17)  #ERIEN 4 (KiEE17) 5,477 4,654
Minimum lease payments under operating leases AR+t RIEFHLELTHER
in respect of land and buildings HIEKHELZ0E 98,708 81,053
Employee benefit expenses (including EEEIAX(BREES
directors’ remuneration) (note 8): ) (PfiI=E8) -
Wages and salaries TERES 840,131 613,970
Pension scheme contributions* RRET B R 80,502 55,299
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 7N #6535 B P b vl < 8,753 10,135
929,386 679,404
Other expenses include the following: HtFAZ BEATRIE
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment BEEAZERE 2,328 4,278
Fair value loss on investments at fair value BRATEIAER
through profit or loss ®E& 2 NHERE 3,134 10,158
Impairment of items of property, M - BEREZHEERE 2
plant and equipment (note 15) BB (Hf7E15) 1,510 -
Impairment of accounts receivable (note 26) FEUER TR (E (B 5E26) 1,324 2,029
Impairment of other receivables H {th FEUCRIERE 177 2,628
Others Hh 789 -
9,262 19,093
* At 31 December 2009, the Group had no forfeited contributions * 200912 A31 8 » AR&EBEH&ED QU

available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future

years (2008: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AR R Bt o)

31 December 2009

2009412 B31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BRERAK
Group
AEE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest on: &
Bank loans wholly repayable within five years AFRNEHEEZRITER 17,141 23,538
Loans from a fellow subsidiary and RRMBATRMBARZ
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary DERBEZER 8,895 12,266
Others HAith 27,916 9,067
Total interest expense on financial liabilities EIE AT EIABZEZ
not at fair value through profit or loss CRBENSHX AR 53,952 44,871
Less: Interest capitalised B BEARMEFLE (25) (13,489)
53,927 31,382
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
I RE IR bt o)

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

8.  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration of the Group for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

4

REEAN - AEEIBRIEHZFTES LR
LEBRNGEFIE161EETHEE 2 ZESH
E3UNNE

follows:
Group
TEME
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Fees: e
Executive directors WiTE=S 200 200
Independent non-executive directors B IEMITES 755 671
Non-executive director EHITESF 200 183
1,155 1,054
Other emoluments: HEE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind HEN 2B BB 5,127 5,132
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 1,957 1,831
Equity-settled share option expense % 7N 4 & B IS A S 2,707 3,081
Pension scheme contributions RRETEMER 161 157
9,952 10,201
11,107 11,255

At the end of the reporting period, certain directors held share options
of the Company, in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

The fair value of the share options which has been recognised in the
income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements

for the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration

disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BRI R A Mk o)

31 December 2009

2009 12H31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. HHME(H)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Independent non-executive directors () BIFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FN - IR TEIFERITEST2H
the year were as follows: I

2008

20084

HK$'000

FET

Mr. Li Hung-kwan, Alfred FHRBTE 27

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS E 240

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis BRAEE 240

Mr. Tan Man Kou BR3CKR Se A 164

671

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RER - TERABIIFPITESSE
non-executive directors during the year (2008: Nil). FE B & (20084 : &) o

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) HTEERIHITES

2009 2009
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ning Gaoning ERELE
Mr. Qu Zhe Mk
Mr. Mak Chi Wing,
William BEREE
Ms. Luan Xiuju BERLT
Mr. Zhang Zhentao RIRELE

Non-executive directors: FHITES :
Mr. Ma Jianping BEYEE
Ms. Wu Wenting Rt
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

8.  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

8. HFME(HE)

(CONTINUED)
(b)  Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) HITESERIFTES(HE)
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme
inkind  Discretionary expense  contributions Total
Fees e 2= bonuses BAgEsE RIKEHE]  remuneration
ik RENF= WisTEa BRERS R el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET TET FiEn FET TET T
2008 20084
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Ning Gaoning EELE 200 - - 497 - 697
Mr. Qu Zhe R - 1,464 720 497 66 2,747
Mr. Mak Chi Wing,
William EEREE - 663 77 451 - 1,191
Ms. Luan Xiuju BERLL - 2,145 704 395 53 3,297
Mr. Zhang Zhentao E i St - 660 330 395 38 1423
200 4,932 1,831 2,235 157 9,355
Non-executive directors: ~ 3EHITEE
Mr. Ma Jianping SRFRAE 83 200 - 451 - 734
Ms. Wu Wenting R¥fgr+t 100 - - 395 - 495
183 200 - 846 - 1,229
383 5,132 1,831 3,081 157 10,584

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2008:
four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2008: one)
non-director, highest paid employee for the year are as follows:

i T R B
REEANRERSHFMZER  BF=%
(2008% : ME)EE - HElF BN LEX
BFE8 o REFEENEHMA (20085 + —F)
BERFHZFERREZMEEIINT

Group

AEH
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYFIZE 1,566 792
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAL 1,172 528
Equity-settled share option expense A E R 347 395
Pension scheme contributions BRI 87 36
3,172 1,751

At the end of the reporting period, the non-director highest paid
employee held share options of the Company, in respect of his
services to the Group, further details of which are set out in note 33
to the financial statements. The fair value of the share options, which
has been recognised to the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director, highest paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

RBEMR  ZFEEZESFHIEERE
AR SR B R (2 BRAE =5 B AN R R RS R
HEfBHN T ImEME33 - 2FBIREZ
AHE(ER BB HRREERAREANFER) T
REHAYETE - HS B ARFERBER
5 WREAFER2HSHFEEME AR

5= o

sRHERGFES) ZH MR oAk 2
AT

Number of employees

BEHE
2009 2008
20095 20084
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L % 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 1
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31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

10. FrfeBipd 2

st

EENSRBEDRRAFERNEBELEN
(hETIERBE A 16.5% (20084F © 16.5% )
RLRIE - Hahibl@ 2 ERRRF) 2 BB
TIRBASEEEE 2 Al AR 2 IRITH AT

Group operates. He
Group
EE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Group: NEE :
Current — Hong Kong BVER—&%
Charge for the year RAEEHR = 9
Current — Mainland China BUHA— A R B A B
Charge for the year RARFEERKR 226,807 154,529
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREEE (3,900) (514)
Investment tax credits BERIER R = (13,872)
Deferred (note 31) BT (HI7E31) 6,489 (3,901)
Total tax charge for the year FEBBEZ L EE 229,396 136,251
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
M mEM )
31 December 2009

200912 H31H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. PFrigBipa 3 (5)

A recondiliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at AR AMARRT - RS HEA R M
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and PR BlAR 2 05 T8 B R A 5 ifn 8 A A B A U
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the MZzBMELH  HBERREFE 2 AHE
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the B UREARER(EDATHR) EAM R
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: ZHAIEE ¢

Group - 2009 ZREEE —20095F

Profit before tax BATE R

Tax at the statutory tax rates REEMESE 2R

Lower tax rate for specific provinces [ERIE St 7 I
or enacted by local authority * HBE R &

Profit not subject to tax due to AR BERmEER
concessions ** R

Profits attributable to associates B RAIEE RN

Income not subject to tax BERHZBA

Expenses not deductible for tax Tz %

Adjustment in closing deferred tax due to  RIEFER K2 Em{EH
change in deferred tax rate ERFREHRTE

Tax rebates i

Effect of withholding tax at 10% or 5% RAEEHEREAT
on the distributable profits AR A EEY10%3K5%
of the Group's PRC subsidiaries RIFAEHz T2

Tax losses utilised from previous periods PRBABE TE

Tax losses not recognised AR

REEARMEGLE Y
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )
31 December 2009
2009412 A31H

10.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. P bA s ()
Group - 2008 REE —2008F
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B HElR CH
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET TFitr FET
Profit before tax HATETI 10,266 746,064 756,330
Tax at the statutory tax rates RAEHEHE T 1,694 16.5 186,516 250 188,210 249
Lower tax rate for specific provinces {ERI & St g I
or enacted by local authority * B R & - - (2,441) 0.3) (2,441) (0.3)
Profit not subject to tax due to AR BEEmEERD
concessions ** pd:yilkad - - (31,265) (4.2) (31,265) @4.1)
Profits attributable to associates BANFEERF - - (31,249) 42)  (31,249) (@4.1)
Income not subject to tax BERR WA (12,939) (126.0) (25,378) (3.4) (38,317) (5.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax MBS 11,254 109.6 19,824 2.7 31,078 4.1
Adjustment in closing deferred tax due to  RIETH ZEHmIEL
change in deferred tax rate RERIERHRE - - (94) - (94) -
Tax rebates by - - (13,872) 19) (13,872) (1.8)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods YRBEHEHE - - (8,846) (12) (8,846) (12)
Tax losses not recognised RERTE - - 43,047 58 43,047 57
REBBUHEGE L
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BESH 9 0.1 136,242 183 136,251 18.1

Under the PRC income tax laws, enterprises are subject to corporate

income tax (“CIT") at rate of 25%. However, certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries are operating in specific development zones in Mainland
China, and the relevant authorities have granted these subsidiaries a

preferential CIT rate 18% .

xx In addition to the preferential CIT rates granted to the Group’s certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China, tax holidays were also granted by the
relevant authorities to these subsidiaries, where CIT is exempted for
the first two profitable years of the subsidiaries and is chargeable at

half of the applicable rates for the subsequent three years.

*k

REFBEMSTUE - ©ERR25%H TR

MIEMST ([ REMSH]) - A - A%
B TP BB A B Ty o B 3t 5 U B R 3
EREEY  FHERERTREWBAT
18%HIERMEMBEHE -

B AR SR B 7 B At A T T X R R
BEOEMREHEIN

EHERERTZE
MBARREE - BENE AR &M EER
FEBMMCMNEEMEH - WREERO=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

10.

11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$12,987,000 (2008: HK$13,002,000) is included in “share
of profits of associates” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

On 30 April 2009, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation issued the Circular on Issues Concerning
Process of Enterprise Income Tax in Enterprise Restructuring Business
— Cai Shui [2009] No. 59, which is effective from 1 January 2008.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group undertook
certain intra-group restructuring activities (the “Restructuring”). Based
on the above circular and other relevant tax regulations, the tax base
and the tax exposure related to the Restructuring, if any, cannot

be determined reliably in the view of the board. Consequently, no
provision thereon has been made in these financial statements.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERSOF  11.

THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2009 includes a loss of HK$21,996,000
(2008: HK$38,430,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 12.

Business combination in 2009

(a) On 9 January 2009, a 65% equity interest owned subsidiary
of the Company, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CBL")
acquired a 40% interest in Beijing Coca-cola Beverage Co. Ltd
("Beijing Bottler”) from Coca-Cola China Industries Limited
at a cash consideration of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$307,479,000) (the “Acquisition A"). Since then, the CBL's
interest in Beijing Bottler increased from 35% to 75% and
Beijing Bottler was consolidated as a subsidiary. Additional
cash consideration incurred after interim period was
HK$685,000.

A3 B BA 32 (48)

JE kBt & A R) 2 B TE & 12,987,000 7 T
(20084 : 13,002,000/ 7T) * W H ALRE U
AT 2 [ AR A RS ]

7200964 A301H © MIEE RBERMELER
EHETCERCESHEBCEMSHRERE
BT RIRER BN —BFi[2009]595% + £ H
B /20081318 - B Z2008F 12 A31H
LHFER - AEEETTETERENESR
EEN([EME] - EFERA - REAMNE
MEEARERE - HEHEENRERK
R (B ) KR RET o Bt - H&
FELE R L BA R 3R 45 P 1R S B4 -

A T B N AL )

HZE2009F 12 A31H IEFEARRAIHE AR
HERE RN BB ALRRR ZHBRENZ
[E5821,996,000/% 7T (2008 4 : 38,430,000
BTT) (H5E34(b)) ©

A

2009F EHK S 4

(a) R2009F1 A998 » ARRIEE65%
A& AN 55 2 BT B8 1 | AP AR A] O A £
BB MR AR (TR AR A E]) A
B4R E AR 270,000,0007T (8
307,479,000/ 7T ) [AICoca-Cola
China Industries Limited4 &1t 7t
AR KA AR AR ([ RER
1)a0% ([ REBEIEAL - B
it BRI ERCRE R B A A R R
2T A35%EMET5% » Mt R
FEMRMR B AT B R B4R & ARR o A
A2 5% £ IR £ R (B 5685,00078

JT °©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

12. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 12. EHGH(HE)
(CONTINUED)
Business combination in 2009 (continued) 2009 F £HK 50 ()
(a) (continued) (a) (%)

A summary of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Beijing Bottler as at the date of the Acquisition A
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before

the Acquisition A was as follows:

RUEESIEAE A 2 B - SERERE
ZHHENEEREBZAFERE
BWEEETRARIARE 2 BRI AR E 0
™

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition Carrying
52 B8 g amount
BRAZATE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Property, plant and equipment M RN 406,152 385,354
Prepaid land premiums B Ltibe 41,990 41,990
Inventories FE 120,767 110,688
Accounts receivable e BR TX 112,220 112,220
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - e REM
other receivables FEYS R E 80,319 80,319
Cash and bank balances Re RIFITHER 16,903 16,903
Accounts payables FETRER (102,911) (102,911)
Other payables and accruals HuibpeN B L EstaE (96,331) (96,333)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER (353,715) (353,715)
Tax payable FET R TE (3,141) (3,141)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIERE (7,720) -
Due to a minority interest HER—RDBRE S (11,341) -
Minority interests DHAE RS (49,568) (47,843)
153,624 143,531
Goodwill on acquisition (note 18) W B R A 2 i B (P71 18) 208,370
361,994
Satisfied by: PRNIVESANE
Cash consideration HERE 308,164
Previous investment in an associate ATERR B & N Rl 2 I & 53,830
361,994

Out of the cash consideration equivalent to HK$308, 164,000,
an amount of HK$194,133,000 was paid during the year,
and the remaining amount of HK$114,031,000 was directly
settled by a minority shareholder of a subsidiary on behalf of
CBL, which is determined as a non-cash item and included in
the balance of due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries in

non-current liabilities.

172 China Foods Limited Annual Report 2009

£ 18 & 7 308,164,000 7% T 19 3 &
REF - EA%194,133,000 %
TLZHBEREAIA - MR
114,031,000 TR E B A B A &)
H O ERP AR DRI
I REEHERAFRESER - A2
AR BERAXRMEBE AR
RREFRIE 2 fERRE R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

12.  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 12. EBEH(E)
(CONTINUED)
Business combination in 2009 (continued) 2009F £SO (&)
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in UESEAEL VRS RIRSEE
respect of the Acquisition A is as follows: HEREFEITAT -
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid BEREERE (194,133)
Cash and bank balances acquired AR S RIRITLTE 16,903
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FUWBEBEAMEEAZRE R
In respect of the Acquisition A RE&FMEERRLFHE (177,230)

Since the acquisition, Beijing Bottler contributed
HK$1,468,000,000 to the Group’s turnover and a profit of
HK$34,231,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended
31 December 2009.

(b) On 1 April 2008, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd. acquired a 40% interest in
Huailai Greatwall Wines Base Development Co., Ltd. (“Huailai
Base”). As relevant procedures had not completed before the
financial year ended 31 December 2008, the board were in
the opinion that the 75% equity interest in Huailai Base was
an available-for-sale investment. On 31 August 2009, the
transfer procedure (the “Acquisition B”) was completed. After
that, Huailai Base was consolidated as a subsidiary.

BULEE% - B = 2009412 A31 A 1F
FELRERBAAEEZ XS
K #RE S F) 9 B E B 1,468,000,000
7T %34,231,00058 7L F)

R2008F4F18 » KRRI2EWE
ARAFEEREEEFRAABEA
ERGEERBAEMHEFRAA
(TEREM ] ) 40% R - BRE
RITZ RN EL = 2008412 A31H IF
HBFEEKRTHK  EEFRAR
[RIRE M 2 75% R AR B R
& - R2009F8A31H - BERERF
([WBESIEB] ) B5Ehk - 1A% - 1B
SREEHD LAY B A RlAR A ASR ©

PEEREMRAT 2009FERE 173



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

M RE M)

31 December 2009

20094F12 A31H

(b)

12.  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 12. EBEH(E)
(CONTINUED)
Business combination in 2009 (continued) 2009F EHK SO (&)
(continued) (b) (&)
A summary of the fair values of the identifiable assets and RS EERE A B » BREM Y
liabilities of Huailai Base as at the date of the Acquisition B AHENEEREEATEHMERE
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before BEWREEIEB AT 2 /B EREE W
the Acquisition B was as follows: N
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition Carrying
g1 amount
L AN | IREE
Hk$'000 hk$'000
FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE MR 2,780 2,445
Prepaid land premiums BN E 1,803 1,801
Other intangible assets Hibmp B E 720 720
Inventories FE 190 190
Prepayments, deposits and BRI OE - Re REM
other receivables fEd TR IE 103 103
Cash and bank balances & MRITHES 279 279
Accounts payables FETBR R (23) (23)
Other payables and accruals Hofth AR08 I pEET B (524) (524)
Minority interests DEIR R R (1,332) (1,248)
3,996 3,743
Goodwill on acquisition (note 18) W E & 2 i (FIEE18) 810
4,806
Satisfied by: LATHIF A
Available-for-sale investments and
related advances At HERE AR 4,806

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the Acquisition B is as follows:

HUBEEREE RS MRS EE
BERRANFEONAT -

HK$'000

F&T

Cash and bank balances acquired FTig AR & MIRTT4EE 279
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents MU SEBELE RS &

In respect of the Acquisition B ReFBEBEERAFE 279

Since the acquisition, Huailai Base contributed HK$639,000
to the Group's turnover and HK$117,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2009.

174 China Foods Limited Annual Report 2009

BUEE% - HZE2009F12 83181
FEEREMAREE 2 EEBNR
4R A 5 F 9 Bl B §1639,0007% 7T &
117,000/ 7T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BARER MR (4
31 December 2009
2009412 A31H
13. DIVIDENDS 13. BB
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interim — HK3.88 cents (2008: HK2.40 cents) FRER— T AR AR 3.88 751
per ordinary share (20084 : 2.407L) 108,305 66,993
Proposed final — HK3.45 cents EEARH - FREER3.45E
(2008: HK3.84 cents) per ordinary share (20084 : 3.8478L) 96,340 107,189
204,645 174,182

14.

At a meeting held on 29 March 2010, the board proposed a final
dividend of HK3.45 cents per share for the year. This recommended
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming general meeting and will be paid out of the Company’s
contributed surplus. It is not reflected as dividend payable in

consolidated statement of financial position.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE  14.

HM2010F3A29ARITMEHR L EFEE
EMAEEIRBEM3A5B I RS -
tEER S AERRRERERRBEFAS
o - WIAARRR 2 BABBRIN - HLIE
B ARREGRE IR R R BEMRE -

NASSE: X DN X R &

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY )

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2009 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$568,081,000 (2008: HK$483,427,000)
and the weighted average number of 2,791,384,426 ordinary shares
(2008: 2,791,383,356) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2009 and

2008 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
for the year and were ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share. Therefore, diluted earnings per share amounts are based

on the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year of
HK$568,081,000 (2008: HK$483,427,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,791,384,426 ordinary shares (2008:

2,791,383,356) in issue during the year.

HZE2000F12A31BEFEZSRER
BATHIRAR R B HEA AN FEALZRE Em
568,081,000 /& JC ( 2008 4 : 483,427,000
BIT)  ARAFEEETINETES T BR
2,791,384,426 i% (2008 4 : 2,791,383,356
BOFTE -

AR EARITEREBREEFATREARFE
ERBERE - AL - BHEMEZE2009F &
2008512 A3VHIEFE 2B 25 ERER
BFELRE - TRERESERFFTEHT
FIBE o Ut - SREFTAFSEIIEZAR
B A BN 2 % F1568,081,000 % 7T
(20084 : 483,427,000 7T) A R AFEL
BT INAE T EBA%2,791,384,426 % (2008
£ :2,791,383,356/%) 5t E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B mE MR )

31 December 2009

200912 H318

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W > WE Mk

Group Company
r£E ARH
Plant,
machinery
and
equipment Construction Plant and
Buildings BE -  inprogress Total equipment
BF  BERRE ERIR Bxt  BERRE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FEx TER TER TER

31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008 and
at 1 January 2009:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2009, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Disposals

Depreciation provided during the year

Impairment

Transfers from investment properties
Transfer from construction in progress

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2009, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 December 2009:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SR E MR )
31 December 2009
200912 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W3 ~ W5 Moot (78)

(CONTINUED)
Group Company
rEE /NS
Plant,
machinery
and
equipment  Construction Plant and
Buildings HE - in progress Total  equipment
BF  ERER EEIR @ BEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT THET THET FHET
31 December 2008 72008512A31H
At 1 January 2008: 20081 718 :
Cost B 1,178,053 2,149,177 42,294 3,369,524 1,814
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment ZEHFTERRE (270,675)  (1,016,270) - (1,286,945) (1,814)
Net carrying amount REFE 907,378 1,132,907 42,294 2,082,579 -
At 1 January 2008, net of 200851 718 -
accumulated depreciation MR REHTER
and impairment FERRFE 907,378 1,132,907 42,294 2,082,579 -
Additions NE 39,628 204,666 207,947 452,241 -
Disposals HE (7,558) (15,117) - (22,675) -
Depreciation provided during the year — FRITER (36,027) (172,671) - (208,698) -
Transfers R 35,417 53,487 (88,904) - -
Exchange realignment [ o s 53,808 70,877 6,340 131,025 -
At 31 December 2008, net of 2008F12H318 -
accumulated depreciation MR REHTER
and impairment RERRFE 992,646 1,274,149 167,677 2,434,472 -
At 31 December 2008: #A2008F12A31H ¢
Cost B 1,291,911 2,515,652 167,677 3,975,240 1,814
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment ZEHFTERRE (299,265)  (1,241,503) - (1,540,768) (1,814)
Net carrying amount REFE 992,646 1,274,149 167,677 2,434,472 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W3 > W okt (4)

(CONTINUED)
All of the Group’s buildings are held outside Hong Kong. NEBMA ZEFHREBUIMLEREE °
At 31 December 2009, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net M2009F 12 A31H - REEKREFELNR
book value of approximately HK$48,793,000 (2008: HK$19,623,000) 48,793,000/ 7L (20084F : 19,623,000/ 7T )
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the ZEF DR AEBEERIRITRE M T K
Group (note 30). R (FFFE30) ©
As at 31 December 20009, certificates of ownership in respect of R2009F 12 A31H » AEERF R AR
certain buildings of the Group in Mainland China with an aggregate ETEFHERFES 112,709,000 T
net book value of HK$112,709,000 (2008: HK$243,106,000) had not (20084 : 243,106,000/8 7T ) + #H [ B H#
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The board anticipate that B ARELELBFOMERSE EE8R
these certificates will be issued in the near future. FIETAASER S LEE -
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYE
Group
TEE
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January M ATAZEREEE 69,884 58,000
Additions NE - 3,394
Transfer to owner-occupied properties EEREETORYE (53,564) -
Net profit from a fair value adjustment B A EFE M EE R FE 3,711 4,656
Exchange realignment FE 5 AR 72 3,834
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31RA ZRAEE 20,103 69,834
All of the Group's investment properties are held outside Hong Kong. REBHRBREMHEARE BN ERF

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16.

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2009 by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at HK$20,103,000
(2008: HK$69,884,000) on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 36(a) to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2009, the Group's investment properties with a
carrying value of HK$15,673,000 (2008: HK$65,767,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

Bk (5)

M2009F 12 A31H » BYBEASERMGE
ME-—AFBENGEEREEBEREGR AR
REEARMRARMS LHAEBZE
Y3 & 5 420,103,0005%8 7T (2008 4F -
69,884,000/ 7T ) ° Z FIREMEHRIEL
EMOMBTE=T - HFBER R 5
HEMEE36()

R2009F 12 A31H  AKBE 2EEER
15,673,000/ 7T (20084F : 65,767,000/ 7T)
ZIREME  DRAEEERRITREM T
LAEHR (BIFE30) ©

17.  PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 17. FAf 24

Group

AEH
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January M ATAZEEE 160,793 132,159
Additions NE 20,050 24,776
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 12) WEEKIB AR (MFE12) 43,793 -
Recognised during the year FNER (5,477) (4,654)
Exchange realignment BE 5 = 303 8,512
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31AZREE 219,462 160,793

Current portion included in prepayments, BERERNRIE - Ee Rk

deposits and other receivables H o fE MR IE 2 BVEREE 5 (5.911) (4,291)
Non-current portion FEENEREL > 213,551 156,502

The leasehold land is held under medium term leases and is situated in
Mainland China.

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s leasehold land with a carrying
value of HK$15,419,000 (2008: Nil) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

REEPHBOSAEE LI HLNHER
o

2009128310 - AEBEHEE THREE

515,419,000/ 7T (20084F = £) - FLAER
FAREERITRVE 2 I (HFE30) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

17.  PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 17. PS4 ()
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2009, certificates of land use rights in respect of M2009F 12 A31H » REERPE A A
certain land of the Group in Mainland China with an aggregate net & T TR F{ES £ /42,385,000% 7T
book value of HK$2,385,000 (2008: HK$16,881,000) had not been (20084 : 16,881,000/ 7T ) + #E 8+ B4 E3
issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The board anticipate that these MABHE RN TMEAEEE - 5
certificates will be issued in the near future. BIEFETAR G REEZERE
18. GOODWILL 18. &
Group
AEH
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January: ®1A1R :
Cost AR 1,409,342 1,332,857
Accumulated impairment 2EHRAE = -
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,409,342 1,332,857
Cost at 1 January, net of M1A1BZARA
accumulated impairment Mk 2HRE 1,409,342 1,332,857
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 12) WEEKTB AR (MEE12) 209,180 -
Exchange realignment TE 5 AR 23,332 76,485
At 31 December MW12A31H 1,641,854 1,409,342
At 31 December: M12A318 :
Cost AR 1,641,854 1,409,342
Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE = -
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,641,854 1,409,342

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill
in respect of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to
remain eliminated against consolidated retained profits.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated retained profits,
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of
SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$89,540,000 as at 31 December 2008 and
2009. The amount of goodwill is stated at its cost of HK$261,897,000,
less cumulative impairment of HK$172,357,000 which arose in years

prior to 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MR E MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

18.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to the following cash-generating units, which are reportable
segments, for impairment testing:

° Wines cash-generating unit;
o Confectionery cash-generating unit; and
° Beverages cash-generating unit.

The recoverable amount of each of the above cash-generating units
is determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering periods ranging from
one to five years approved by senior management. The discount rates
applied to the cash flow projections ranged from 10% to 14%.

The carrying amount of goodwiill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units is as follows:

18.

72 (A

BB 2R ERH
FREBHAGMEEZHE  SHREUT
ReEE B (T 2HHH) AR EA

Al

BRER S EEEN
KERMBESELSMN - &
IR B EE AL o

M BIB S EEEN AT REIFE - TRIE
FREEET - FAEBEIRBRSHEERE
HERE—FERF MY RBEE T ERR
CREEEFE - REREBEFERZ AL
EENTR10%E14% ©

8 ReEESM 2 ERAENT

P

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Wines it 463,960 440,567
Confectionery KERm 11,610 11,610
Beverages e 1,166,284 957,165
1,641,854 1,409,342

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating units for 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Raw materials price inflation — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to raw materials price inflation is the forecast price indices
during the budget year for countries from where raw materials are
sourced.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external
information sources.

742009412 A31H 20085 12 4318 - £
AHRSELAEM EREER  CERAE
TRRMEE - UTHAEEERTRERE
BHEMERE 2 —BERE - ETEER
BRI -

BHEFF — BB REER R FHETE
EZEE AREEEEEN —ERE2F
BERE - AR EBANCE R RIS %
B -

BB E - PR MR R AR ERAR - I
[RERIBRE ALY N 2 AR o

R FHETS L5 — R E B T R RHERS

PRz EBERMABELE  ARBEEEER -
R SREB B TRRIE AR IR -

BT RRRR 2 EBETEINRE HRR—
B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

19.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. HAbJESE &

Group rEE
Software
B
HK$'000
FHIT

31 December 2009 2009%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2009, net of accumulated 7200951 B1H 2B -

amortisation OBk R EHHEESH 36,639
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 12) BA—RHB R (HE12) 720
Additions NE 10,203
Amortisation provided during the year FRE R E (4,369)
Exchange realignment E R % 64
At 31 December 2009 7200912 H31H 43,257
At 31 December 2009: 72009 12 A31H

Cost BN 51,260

Accumulated amortisation Ehg i (8,003)

Net carrying amount R FE 43,257
31 December 2008 2008%F12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2008, net of accumulated 120081 A1H Z A -

amortisation OBk REHHEESH 17,179
Additions NE 21,159
Amortisation provided during the year F B R E (3,312)
Exchange realignment b 5 28 1,613
At 31 December 2008 #2008F 12 H31H 36,639
At 31 December 2008: 72008 12 A31H

Cost BN 40,213

Accumulated amortisation b i (3,574)

Net carrying amount R FE 36,639
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B mEM )
31 December 2009
2009412 A31A
20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. JAMHE A F Z A
Company
AT
2009 2008
20094 20084F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRRG - HERAAE 2,106,711 2,106,712
Due from subsidiaries Sy EENCIVSE:N 4,128,076 4,432,770
Due to subsidiaries RSB ARIFIA (50,928) (534,898)
6,183,859 6,004,584

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and not
expected to be repaid within the next 12 months. The carrying
amounts of these amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to
their fair values.

The value of the unlisted shares is based on:

(a) the book values of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the Group as at the date when the Company
became the holding company of the Group pursuant to the
group reorganisation in 1991; and

(b) the costs of acquisitions of certain subsidiaries in 2001 and
2006.

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2009 are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

BB AR 2 BERVEER - R REHA
AR1IEANEE - ZEREENIEL
Az FOA 2 FREEEE AT ERS -

FELETRAD 2 BEA T REE

(@) BRARBIRBEI199FE 2 £ESAM
BARAREEZZERARER K&
EREEMBARZERNEEFELZ
fREE X

(b) 7420014 220064 AU E T I
DRLZBA

RRABEBHEARNR2009F12A318 2+
15 - FRIMIEREMTFE39 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. EE AR Z LR
Group
AEM

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tt T

Share of net assets PMEEEFE 446,952 411,951

The balances with associates included in current assets and current
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of the Group's associates extracted from their financial statements, or
where appropriate, management accounts;

BRERADEELRBBENZ EEE AR
EAREERT  RERAR-FREE -

TREAMEAAKERE DR ZVHRS
HEWRIRE (WEA) 2 B ERBIE

2009 2008

20095 20084

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TETT

Assets BE 6,195,943 5,925,945
Liabilities afE 3,913,130 3,918,961
Revenue WA 11,178,437 10,119,973
Profit il 296,093 393,554

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 December 2009
are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

On 31 January 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a connected party, Coca-Cola South Asia Holdings,
Inc., to acquire a 21% share interest in Coca-Cola Bottlers
Manufacturing Holdings Limited (“CCBMH"), at a cash consideration
of RMB148,280,000 (approximately HK$161,057,000). CCBMH

holds a 100% equity interest in Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in the production
of still beverages under the trademarks of The Coca-Cola Company
and its affiliates. The acquisition was completed on 21 February 2008.
Further details of this acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 21 February 2008.

The Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of CCBMH as at the date of acquisition is HK$201,959,000,
which resulted in an excess of fair value of net assets acquired over
the cost of HK$40,902,000 recognised as an income included in

the “share of profits of associates” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.
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BEAREER2009F12A31 B2 F EME R
BIFFIE - SRS 40 -

200851 A31H » ZREE ELREFHE 5 Coca-
Cola South Asia Holdings, Inc.z]3Z B &1
& DB R E AR 148,280,000 7T (47
161,057,000/ 7T ) & Coca-Cola Bottlers
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SRR MR (42)
31 December 2009
2009412 4318
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22, APHE AR SR BA K
AND RELATED ADVANCES
Group
TER
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Unlisted equity investments elsewhere FEABAIMOE 7 IE FHIRARE -
than Hong Kong, at fair value BRATE 6,880 11,672
Unlisted equity investments elsewhere FEABAIMOE 7 IE FHIRARE -
than Hong Kong, at cost BKE 198,782 198,782
Amount due from investee companies WAR B RN EZ Rk 934 901
206,596 211,355
The amount due from investee companies is unsecured, interest-free ZERENANRALSEERR RS REEE
and has no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the BRE o MR A A RO ERMREE
loans to investee companies approximate to their fair values. HHENFEEE -
Certain unlisted equity investments were stated at cost less HREEERA/ETIHLIRAREZ AT
impairment because the board are of the opinion that their fair value BEEE]ETE - BWAKAKRENBRIKES)
cannot be measured reliably. iR -
23. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 23. A EFIPIRE

The held-to-maturity investments consists of debt investments with
fixed maturity dates and coupon rates, carried at amortised cost.

HAEZIPRECEAEEIHAY =@
FE AR R AT IR EBKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BARSR MR ()
31 December 2009
2009412 A31H
24. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 24. HWE A
Group
rEE
2009 2008
200945 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January ®W1A1A 86,643 72,070
Decrease due to harvest R A (21,408) (15,133)
Additions during the year FRRE 108 2,204
Gains arising from changes in fair value AEEgEHS AT E LR
attributable to physical changes FirEE 4 2 s 26,899 27,502
At 31 December »®12A31H 92,242 86,643
(@) Analysis of biological assets (@) HEYEEZDN
At the end of the financial year, the Group's total planted area RAMRFERER  A5BER

of mature plantations is as follows:

PAEIEE 2 EIEARENT -

Group
rEE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Planted Area: TEEmEE -
— Mature — B 92,242 86,643
Group
rEE
2009 2008
20094 20084
Hectares Hectares
AHE NZE|
Planted Area: TEEmE -
— Mature — DK 588 559
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

24. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(b) Analysis of grape production
During the financial year, the Group harvested approximately
4,151,200 kilograms (2008: 3,771,900 kilograms) of grapes,
which had a fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of
HK$21,408,000 (2008: HK$15,133,000). The fair value of
grapes was determined with reference to their market prices.

Significant assumptions made in determining the fair value of
the biological assets are as follows:

(i) the grape vines will continue to be competently
managed and remain free from irremediable diseases
in the remaining estimated useful lives;

(ii) the expected prices of grapes are based on the past

actual average district prices; and

(iii) the future cash flows have been discounted at the
target rate of return on equity of the wines segment.

24, Y& E(H)

(b)

BHEEEZDM

RAMBEE - AEEEFE KL
4,151,200 2 fr (20084F : 3,771,900
AT)  ERFEBGHE 2K
AN & 21,408,000 7% Jt (2008 & :
15,133,000 7) - @E 2 A TFET)
RTEmMET -

BEEEMEEZ RFERMELZ
FTERERON

0] BENSEEERLER
KR T 2 (T AT A ER AR

& bhims -
TR

() EBZEHERDRZLE
B2 I AR M X
iR

(iii) ARBELRECREESH
ZBRREEORE B L

T EIRME -
25. INVENTORIES 25. 8
Group
AEH
2009 2008
200945 20084F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials Rt 1,255,286 1,283,688
Work in progress EER 59,826 2,024
Finished goods SR R 1,531,385 1,343,145
2,846,497 2,628,857
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

26.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26.

Group
AEH
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Accounts and bills receivables FEUWRBR T N =48 1,104,538 913,826
Impairment A (24,001) (29,327)
1,080,537 884,499

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for 30 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing, they are
normally settled within one to three months and one to six months,
respectively.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at the

BREEPIN  AEBREP ZE SR E
BIREHAIY  —MIRENEP LMK
EEH—MNT308E0R - FRABTFAHR
BEEHLR - AEESREFREEHIE
KREBEKERRBBEEEHIE - 5§
EERBRBERE  =SRATEEEHEZS
ey - ER LI URAEESRARET
REFEZEUEN  MEERKRZERREE
WAERE - BBEERMRZE AT E  —K%
WARES B AE—E=@MAR—Z=MEA -

RS MR BBERR R R IRRE R HER

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of BRI E ST T
impairment, is as follows:
Group
AEH
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Outstanding balances with ages: REBEHZBRRIOT ¢
Within 3 months =@AA 797,080 588,766
3 to 12 months =EAZE+EAR 279,216 291,551
1 to 2 years —FEMFR 2,653 4,182
Over 2 years BB A 1,588 -
1,080,537 884,499
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26.
(CONTINUED)

The movements in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

W W Rk I S s ()

FEYSRTORE R BRSNS

Group

AEH
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
At 1 January M1H1H 29,327 25,671
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BRI B A &) 8 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EHERREERE (fize) 1,324 2,029
Amount written off as uncollectible Baly=5=220% sk ik (6,701) (22)
Exchange realignment BE 5 = 43 1,649
At 31 December M12A31H 24,001 29,327

The individually impaired accounts receivable relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

EERIRE 2 & YRR B BE 170 B TR R 3 2
EFP AR - BEHERRE 0 BUERR -
REE W E L% F AT A A ER R R
FRE A PR TG

REREEREZ ERERREE 2 RRD
W -

Group
TEE
2009 2008
20094 20084F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Outstanding balances with ages: REBESHZ RERWAT
Neither past due nor impaired R EINARRE 953,359 740,930
Less than 1 month past due wHAE A LA 13,660 15,487
1 to 3 months past due BHER1 =31 A 40,979 46,462
More than 3 months but less than
12 months past due EHA3E A LB DR12E A 68,299 77,438
More than 1 year but less than
2 years past due BERELA B ARG 2,653 4,182
More than 2 years past due BER2 LA 1,587 -
1,080,537 884,499
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

26.

27.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26.

(CONTINUED)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

JE W B i B S (48)

REEATRARRE 2 FE W AR T 8 % 4 3T BE
BHRBRIENZEREFEH

EEHMERBE 2 FEUBR FUSE% 2 i 14
AEERFLHRTZELTFHR o £R
NEEE  ARBAEERAS  ARNZEHER
ZEEEEWERREANEE BHAR KRR
B - SO R R A RE L RE
B - AREY B SEBRIA TRAER
kR B A E IR THEE o

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 27. HEAPFEIAHGEZBE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
EE N
2009 2008 2009 2008
20094 20084 20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FH&T FHExT FHET
Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong, at fair value BERBLTRE - BATE 16,728 9,228 12,072 7,204

The above investments at 31 December 2008 and 2009 were classified
as held for trading.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 28.

e RkBeFHEEA LD

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS A 2 B fE
Group Company
AEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
2009F 20084 20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FExT FAET
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 1,864,691 1,523,927 32,036 19,968
Time deposits TEHFER 107,757 25,759 - -
1,972,448 1,549,686 32,036 19,968
Less: time deposits pledged S PHASHARITE
for short term bank loans KA 2 &5
(note 30) 73R (BiF3E30) (29,345) (3,002) - -
Cash and cash equivalents He LIRSS EER 1,943,103 1,546,684 32,036 19,968

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$1,182,140,000 (2008: HK$1,449,719,000).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBEHRR - REBAARBREMZ
ReMNBAEEMAREERFRR
1,182,140,00075 7T (20084F : 1,449,719,000
BIL) c ARETBERIRAEMER
AT - RIED BISMNEE RPN A EE - (SHE
REEERRTE  AEREEFEBFITET
SNEHER 2 RITHARELBRRINE -

FHRIRITZIRE HREG RRITERM KRG
H2FBNERIA R - BFAREEEE 2
Re®RME  CHEMERVE-—RE=
BATE 2 FHREFH - LREEHERFR
MEEERAE - RITEARREERFREFA
BIOWHEE NIk 2 (BRI ZIRIT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

29. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 29.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the end of

JE A B B St

RBEPRRZENEREREREZERA

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BT -
Group
rEE
2009 2008
200945 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Outstanding balances with ages: REBERZRROT -
Within 3 months =@EAA 797,101 827,482
3 to 12 months “EAE+_EAR 104,573 25,540
1 to 2 years —FEMFRN 13,925 7,224
Over 2 years BRI 703 605
916,302 860,851

Accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled during one to three months, and one to six months,

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
M mEM )
31 December 2009

200912 H31H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER  30. #8453 47 8k & Hfth 82k

BORROWINGS
Group
biS-- |
2008
20084
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BEBHIE(%) E =) FEn
Current bk
Bank Loans - Secured BITER-HHE 454-551 2009 10,964
Bank Loans - Unsecured PITER—EH 6.48 2009 90,714
Other Loans - Secured HEhEH—-HEE N/A N/A -
il A
Other Loans — Unsecured Hih &5 —EigHE 5.04-6.57 2009 146,277
247,955
Non-Current g
Bank loans — unsecured PITER—EHE N/A N/A -
il A
247,955
Analysed into: i
Bank loans repayable: HEEZBITER
—FREIH%
Within one year or on demand RRMER 101,678
In the second year F-F -
101,678
Other loans: HtEH
—FREIH%
Within one year or on demand RBAEE 146,277
146,277
247,955
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER  30.

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(a) Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:
(i) a charge over the Group's investment properties held

outside Hong Kong with a carrying value at the end
of the reporting period of HK$15,673,000 (2008:
HK$65,767,000) (note 16);

(ii) a charge over certain of the Group'’s buildings with
a net book value of approximately HK$48,793,000
(2008: HK$19,623,000) (note 15);

(iii) a charge over certain of the Group’s land use rights
with a net book value of HK$15,419,000 (2008: Nil)
(note 17); and

(iv) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to HK$29,345,000 (2008: HK$3,002,000)
(note 28).

(b) Except for bank and other borrowings of HK$12,209,000
(2008: Nil) denominated in United States dollars and
HK$500,000,000 denominated in Hong Kong dollars (2008:
Nil) as at 31 December 2009 and certain bank loans of
HK$5,294,000 denominated in Pounds Sterling as at 31
December 2008, all other borrowings are denominated in
RMB.
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AREEZIRITERTIATFIIAR (E
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(i) k4 8 KEE@EAE
15,673,000 7% 7T (2008 £ -
65,767,000 T ) Z L& B
LN BE 2 B TIREMEZ
iz (MisE16)

(ii) NAEBREFEED
48,793,000% 7T (2008 £F -
19,623,000 L) 2 & T12
F 2R (FiEE15)

(iii) XEBEEFEA
15,419,000 % 7T (2008 £ :
) za T L (E A i
R(E17) 0 &

(iv) AEBEZETFTEBRGFR 2K
1 529,345,000 7T (2008
£ 13,002,000 7T ) (M 5E
28) °

K7 2009412 A31H © 12,209,000
7E7C(20084F « TAEIL) MIRITRE
ftb B FR LA SE T 5118 12 500,000,000
JL(20084F : TF L) LAABLEHE -
LA K FA2008F 12 A31H -+ 5,294,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER  30.

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The other loans represent loans of HK$14,765,000 (2008:
HK$146,277,000) from a financial institution in the COFCO group.
These balances are unsecured and bear interest at rates ranging from
4.37% to 4.86% (2008: 5.04% to 6.57%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
approximate to their fair values at the end of the reporting period.

At S R AT B K S H A B A
HtERPRERET —MUBSREZE
7X14,765,0007 7T (20084 : 146,277,000
T0) ° AEEBAEER BN TEF437%
Z4.86% (20084 : 5.04% % 6.57% ) K A=
FHE e

REEZRTEEMERZ REERELRE
SR NFEEE ©

Company AT
2009 2008
2009% 20084
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBRRIE(%) ] TiEgn ERAE(%) )]s FET
Non-current FRE
Bank loans - unsecured RITER—BER 1.10 2011 500,000 N/A N/A -
TEm TEm
500,000 -
Analysed into: I
Bank loans repayable: FEBZRIER
In the second year RE—F 500,000 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

31. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities
Group

31. EHEFLIA

AEENEERAREREEZEBHOT

AR A

AEE

At 1 January 2008
Deferred tax charged to the
income statement
during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2008 and
at 1 January 2009

Deferred tax charge related to fair value arising
from the acquisition of a subsidiary
Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (note 10)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2009
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20081 A1H

RAREFZ R ARER AR
ZIEIERE (PHFE10)

e 3

2008512 A31H
KFA200951 A1H

R B AR mELEZ A FE
PR BRI AR

AAFEWAIRK A
ZEIER A (MFE10)

e 3

72009512 A31H

Fair value adjustments arising
from investment properties
REVEEEZATFERE
Hk$'000

FET

6,729

326

426

7,481

7,720

1,889
14

17,104



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

31. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 31. BEERLIE (4)
Deferred tax assets EEHREBEEE
Group REE
Impairment
Provision of
against receivables
inventories FEUR Others Total
FERE RAURE Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAxT FHET FAT FAT
At 1 January 2008 2008F 1 A1H 434 4,983 20,018 25,435
Deferred tax credited to the income RAFERAHRRAETA
statement during the year (note 10) ZIRFERIIE (M5E10) 188 2,292 1,747 4,227
Exchange realignment [& 5 32 33 379 1,291 1,703
At 31 December 2008 and 720085124318
at 1 January 2009 NpA20095F1 A1H 655 7,654 23,056 31,365
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to RAFEERAREA
the income statement during the year &t A/ (318 ) Z IR IEF B
(note 10) (Kf=E10) 1,425 504 (6,529) (4,600)
Exchange realignment [& 5 32 2 12 32 46
At 31 December 2009 720095124318 2,082 8,170 16,559 26,811

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$403,445,000 (2008: HK$253,893,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits to a maximum period of five
years of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors form the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors.

At 31 December 2009, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. Based on the view of the board, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future.

AEEAEFERATBEARNMZBIER
403,445,000/% 7 (20084 : 253,893,000/%8
) ARELEBBRZARERRERER
F 2R BREHEARRERTOEN - BRZ
SRR A CREREEME R R Z M8
RA) - MANRAE ERTE M AT 3 A %
EHE - RUERZEEREAREHAE
=

REFBEFEEMEEE - ERBERMA L
ZONERERIINEREEERKE - AR
BEBIN10% 2 TEHHL o L3R E 720084 1
A1BEARIEAMN2007F12 A31B 214 #
B2 &F - (M BIEZEINHIRE HEFTTER
EREEISETABWEEEL - RITEMBR R
FTHAZE% ©

M2009F12A318 @ WARAEBREF K
32 BB A R ZABMNTEI R 2 R IE & F M
BN EMBMERELHE EE2RAZ
LB ARERTER KBRS IKA BAFI R
GAK e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

32. SHARE CAPITAL

32, AR

Shares 8l
2009 2008
200945 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: JERE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares FIEEO. 108 T2 LAk
of HK$0.10 each 4,000,000,0008% 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
FFE(EO. 1078 T2 iBmAY
2,791,512,076 (2008: 2,791,383,356) 2,791,512,076f% (20084 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 2,791,383,356f%) 279,151 279,138
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: REERAEFHNAT -

(a) The subscription rights attaching to 128,720 share options (a
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$4.952 per
share (note 33), resulting in the issue of 128,720 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses,

of HK$637,421.

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the

128,7201) BERRE AT IS 2 SR BB HEIZ R
BESMRA.952 87T (MisE33) BT
fF - BHIEIT128,720 K B EE
0. 10T Z MR + BIRSREMBRE
1T 2 A1 A637,42187T °

FA - ARAEETEBREAE DS

above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as follows: B2 GHENT :
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BERITRHEE BRITRE B RER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2008 and 2008F1A1H K
1 January 2009 2009F1A1H 2,791,383,356 279,138 - 279,138
Share options exercised (a) BITERERE®Q) 128,720 13 826 839
At 31 December 2009 7200912 A31H 2,791,512,076 279,151 826 279,977
Share options SRR AE

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 33 to the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SR E MR )

31 December 2009

200912 A31H

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 November 2006,

the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”). The Scheme became effective on 21 November 2006 (the
“Effective Date”) and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group'’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors (other than independent non-executive directors) and other
employees of the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the issued shares of the Company

at the date of the adoption of the Scheme. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options granted to each eligible
participant pursuant to the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of its associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28

days from the date of offer. The exercise periods of the share options
granted commence after applicable vesting periods and in any event
end on a date which is not later than seven years from the date of
acceptance of the share options, subject to early termination thereof as
provided in the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the board, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options;
and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

S R AR
RIEF 2006511 A21 BB —BEERZE
R RNARBGHERN—TBRERERT 8 (5%
sHal]) o ZEtEIR20065F 11 A218 ([ H
DA - BRIEBITECHESIERT - B BA%A
BB A 05 o

ZaT 8l E ) b Ol B W AN [E 2 BRI AR &
EHERZ A ERZ8E - LB ZAERK
2EREBFEARPNEE(BIUFATEER
SN RAEEZ BfES -

xaT 8 B AT AR T ORI TE 2 AR 1T
ERAREBZ ARBRN RS LREE - 18
ERARBRRMZA BB REBETRNZ
10% ° PMER+ B A #R - BIRZET R
TEUABERSEE ZBRETETRNZ
BEREEEEAREEENARTEETR
D21% BRI Z EE—FRHZ
BRER SRR R ARG -

BYAQARES TETRABREERR
SR TR B A 2 BE AR 78 S R Y8 3E
TESHE o 1o - AER+ = A EM
N BRFEARREERESETMHEAZ
B - MBaA QBT AEEE T
BR150.1% « SHRARABRGREE B ZE
Rt E M4 EEE5,000,000% T  BIZB%L S
RGN PN A

BRERT AR A BB A28 B R - B
HEERENITER - BEENEEREER

RIS BB LB RE R B
FT7E - AT EERABIRRRILD
BSCEBRIN ©

BREZOTEBERESSRE - ETEER

(DA BB AR 2 B AR X B TE B 2 P 2
H&Zﬁfﬁ PR (i EERHE MR RER S AR
I FERE S 2 P HT (B ¢ Sh(iii) B dn Z TE
AREERAE) °
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2009412 A31H

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 33.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 27 September 2007, a total of 20,619,000 share options were
granted to certain directors and employees of the Group in respect

of their services to the Group in the forthcoming year. These share
options shall be vested during the period from 27 September 2007 to
26 September 2011 with an exercise price of HK$4.952 per share and
an exercise period from 27 September 2009 to 26 September 2014.
The price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$4.95
per share.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

il S e w3 (A0)
SRR MR 408457 A M RO S
HA R W -

M2007F9A278  ARBIHAERETE
EREEBRRFRAREERERBMELE
$£20,619,00017 FEARIE © 7% 5 RE AR 1 52007
F9H27AE2011F9H26 5B » 1T{E(B
AFRRA.95278 7T + 1T HIFR200949 A27H
£2014F9A26H - REHL BEBHARBIRKRE
BEA958TT

RAEER - RIEZ BT IR RETT
e

2009 2008
20095 20084F
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options  exercise price of options

HKS$ per share ‘000  HKS per share '000

EFHTEE BREHE  mETarTEE RS E

B/ ] F45 B/ R Fn

At 1 January »1ATR 4.952 18,708 4.952 20,478
Cancelled during the year FNEH 4.952 (525) 4.952 (1,770)
Exercised during the year FRITEE 4.952 (129) - -
At 31 December W12A318 4,952 18,054 4.952 18,708

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$6.92 (2008: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MR E MR )

31 December 2009

2009412 A31H

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 33.

The vesting periods, exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

S 3 3l ()
H2009F 12 A31 H AR EITEERE 2 5FEH
M ITEERITERFENT ¢

Number of options granted to

BFEREHE Exercise
Directors Employees Total Vesting period price per share Exercise period
-2 =] At HEHE BRITEE TR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$
T FH T BT
1,820 4,198 6,018 27-9-2007 - 26-9-2009 4.952 27-9-2009 - 26-9-2014
1,820 4,198 6,018 27-9-2007 - 26-9-2010 4.952 27-9-2010 - 26-9-2014
1,820 4,198 6,018 27-9-2007 - 26-9-2011 4.952 27-9-2011 - 26-9-2014
5,460 12,594 18,054

The fair value of the share options of the Scheme granted during
the year ended 31 December 2007 was HK$32,227,000 (HK$1.563
each) of which the Company recognised a share option expense of
HK$8,753,000 (2008: HK$10,135,000) during the year ended 31

December 2009.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted in 2007 was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes-Merton
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the

inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Historical volatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Expected life of options (year)
Weighted average share price (HK$)

0.8
30.57
30.57
4.102

4.952

HZE2007F12 A31HILFERREZAEE
BB R AE A 1B 432,227,000 7T (B1p
1.563% L) + EFRZARLQFIREZ£2009F12 A
31 H 1L 5 A R R 7 . 8,753,000 %
Jt(2008% : 10,135,000/ 7T) °

R2007FHE T UARALH 2 BlRkiE s A FE
THR R FEER RS B AR 5 — AT R HT HA 4
BRIEL AR - WEZ R T EREZ R
RAEM - TRIEZEX ZHAZE -

%5 R (%) 0.8
TEHAIR 18 (%) 30.57
BEFIE(%) 30.57
R TR (%) 4.102
SERETERTF E(F) 5
hniEFARG ERE (BT 4.952
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The expected life of the options is determined with reference to the
vesting term and original contractual term of the Scheme and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had 18,054,000 (2008:
18,708,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had a remaining
contractual life of 4.74 years (2008: 5.74 years). The exercise in full

of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 18,054,000 (2008:
18,708,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$1,805,000 (2008: approximately
HK$1,871,000) and share premium of approximately HK$87,598,000
(2008: approximately HK$90,771,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of the approval of these financial statements, the shares
issuable from the above outstanding share options represented
approximately 0.65% (2008: 0.67 %) of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.
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BRI F D2 EZME 2B IR R
RAEAKIGRRMERE - RUBEBRTTEBR
REEVIE R - TEERIRIE R BB IR IR F] B R
KBBHER - ERRBERVREBRLE
2o

I LA 2 R I R R B SR SHE R

ATEER -

2009512 A31H » AR EIREZE%ER
18,054,00017 (20084F : 18,708,00017 ) i i
TEMARITEE © 7A2009F 12 A31 B M ATTFEE
[&#E 2 82 6 #IHARR B4.744F (20084 : 5.74
F) o RIBARQARIREF 2 EAZRE - BE8IT
150 &5 T B AR 1% 25 SR /A 318847 18,054,000
A% (20084F : 18,708,0000% ) 585N & 38 A% K 49
1,805,000 7T (20084F : #71,871,0007% 7T.)
Z BBHNIRAN LA K B4 42 {8 #987,598,00074 7T
(20084 : #990,771,00058 7T ) (A HR% 17 2
THZ) -

RAGHREERBAY - BIF LR RITE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2009

2009412 B31H

34. RESERVES
(@) The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 119 to
120 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain of
the Company's subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as
to use.

The Group's capital reserve includes the contributed surplus
which represents:

(i) the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor under the group reorganisation in
1991, less the goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates which remains eliminated
against the capital reserve, as explained in note 18 to
the financial statements; and

(i) the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore under the reorganisation as
explained in note 1 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

34.
(a)

REE
FEEEFRBEFEZHBEDRE
REEH 2T NUBHEF 11982
FN0EFEEREBHRP

RIBFING B2 BREDI RO
B ARBETHREAMLHEERF
REERB BN EEEER
BEBRHZEEEA -

AEEZEREEOEEARS
f&

0) PR1991 4 S [B SRR PTURER
Wetn 2 BEBBADREL
B 1T 2 B EE 2 8GR -
BEDMARIEE A ET R
Z WEBR B A R B X A
PESZBE (MM BRE
MizE18 2 1) © &

(ii) MREMHE (INEZE2008F 12 A
31HIEFEM SRS
ZRIE) BFFTUEE AR D 2 (8
BERARNQFHELmMETZ
R EE 2 BB -

PEREREMRAT 2009FERE 203



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

M REM )

31 December 2009

20094F12 A31H

(b)

34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34, filifs (4)
The Company (b) ZEAF
Employee
share-based
Share compensation
premium reserve
account EERE  Contributed Retained
gy EEEm surplus profits Total
BER e BB REER &t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FAL TARL TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2008 7200851718 3,660,432 3,060 1,511,410 30,608 5,205,510
Equity-settled share
option arrangements RAL BRI EL 6 - 10,135 - - 10,135
Total comprehensive income
for the year FERRANAEE - - - 606,179 606,179
Cancellation of share premium ARk (7 5B (3,660,432) - 3,660,432 - -
2008 interim dividend paid 2 J%2008 R AR & 13 - - - (66,993) (66,993)
Final 2008 dividend proposed  #%2008 K EJ & 13 - - (107,189) - (107,189)
At 31 December 2008 and 20085124318
1 January 2009 R200951A81R —* 13,195 5,064,653* 569,794* 5,647,642
Equity-settled share
option arrangements RAL BRI EL 6 - 8,753 - - 8,753
Exercise of share options (i 826 (201) - - 625
Total comprehensive loss
for the year FERRABEEE - - - (21,99) (21,99)
2009 Interim dividend paid BIR20095F HRE 13 - - - (108,305) (108,305)
Final 2009 dividend proposed ~ #E20094F K& & 13 - - (96,340) - (96,340)
At 31 December 2009 20095124318 826* 21,747 4,968,313* 439,493 5,430,379
* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of * ZEEEIR B B R RSB

HK$5,430,379,000 (2008: HK$5,647,642,000) in the

Company's statement of financial position.
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34. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) The Company (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i) the difference between the underlying net assets of
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefore under a group
reorganisation in 1991; and

(i) the difference between the consideration payable
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor under the reorganisation as
explained in note 1 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

On 15 April 2008, the board passed a resolution in relation
to a share premium cancellation pursuant to section 46 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which was approved
by shareholders on a special resolution on 19 May 2008, and
was later approved by the registrar of companies of Bermuda
on 3 June 2008. Accordingly, the share premium account
for approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was transferred to

contributed surplus during the year ended 31 December 2008.

The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises
the fair value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, under

the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus of the Company is also available for distribution to its
shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of its contributed surplus,

if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would

thereby be less than the aggregated realisable value
of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

34. fitt ()

(b)

RATF(HE)
ADBZBAREBIE -

0) MELRZEAEEFER
RARRFEI1999NF 2 £EHE
Am BT ZERBRZ IR E
B2ERE: &

(ii) MREMHE (INEZE2008F 12 A
31HIEFEM B REM
2R KB B ARS
18 2 R R B A BRI
e 1T 2 B e ] 2 B 1n
EEZZE -

R2008F4A15H » EEEEBE—
BEABIREAREIBIFERRES
AGETESHR D R B2 RER - B
SRFBZRDHR20084F5 A 198 F BRI
RBRFNEREE - WEHER
20086 A3AEERERN Al FME
HEfE o AL - B E2008F12A31H
FE AR 5 B IR 49 3,660,432,000
BTEEREHARR -

B RS 2.48 RN /A
NzzBzastBEE— St
EERAGEFHREERFEDRE
B ARETEEREZATFE R
ERBREETER  ZEWRE
BARMEBERE - HinE BER
RSO - BIRTAREER -

BARRBZRE RS - 8151981
FERERRE  ARARZEAR
BRIFAIE DK T HACR » AW - &K
REETIER T EEIRIK R
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EEEIHEE X
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2009412 A31H

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35.

Save as disclosed in note 10, at the end of the reporting period,
neither the Group nor the Company had any other significant
contingent liabilities.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36.

(@) Aslessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to ten years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

AR A E

BRIEE10FTIREESD - WIEHR - A&EH
RARNBWBAEMEARABLE

R ZHE

() fFEREEA
FEERBEEENLTHELEER
A (MfsE16) @ KMz AR
—E+FEAE - —RMEF - B2
ERMARERP XN ZE - WaTH
ERBEERTRRARES -

200912 4318 - REEBERE
HAPAT 2 TR A LML E
Wz RARRERSETEMT

Group
rEE
2009 2008
200945 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 1,564 7,621
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FIEFERTF (PIEERWE) 1,425 3,260
2,989 10,881
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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200912 A31H

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. REBHAZHE(H)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Aslessee (b) HEREBEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under AEBERBLEEHOZHBERET
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are MAEYE - WEANEHE2E
negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years. HE—F=+FT7%E -
At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum #2009F 12 A31H + AEERED
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling AR e E RN Z AR &EME
due as follows: SETEINT
Group
TEE
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year —FR 53,778 37,954
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoEFERAFT(BIEEREME) 69,208 46,875
After five years hFE 89,485 98,031
212,471 182,860
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BAKYE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 36(b) BRAS L SCH 3 36(h) FF il 2 45 & AR A AHE S -
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end REFERIRE BN AT EAFIE
of the reporting period:
Group
TEE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Capital commitments in respect of: BMATIER 2 EAAESE -
Property, plant and equipment: M - BE KRS
Authorised but not contracted EEERRETL 2,420 -
Contracted, but not provided for BRIAERTE 7,713 49,250
Acquisition of additional interest in U BE RS — 1B & A ) 2 8o
an associate: e
Contracted, but not provided for BRIAERTE = 306,161
10,133 355,411
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38. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 38. BAEANLA S
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere (a) MBI E i AT R X 5
in the financial statements, the Group had the following N AEGRON » REBE PR AFE A
material transactions with related parties during the year: BATETZEARZOT :
Group
AEE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries: HREIRZMBARZRS ¢
Sales of goods* HEEMm* (i) 2,235 10,715
Purchases of goods* EEEm* (i) 3,650,662 3,621,284
Service fee received EURARTS E B 0] 964 -
Operating lease rentals paid* AT ERLEE (i) 11,767 10,453
Interest expenses B H (i) 5,726 8,512
Transactions with the ultimate BHFEIERARIZR S ¢
holding company:
Sales of goods* HEEMm* (i) 291 6,298
Operating lease rentals paid* AT ERLEE (i) 9,205 -
Transactions with associates: HENF 2R ¢
Sales of goods* PHEEMm* (i) 13,864 3,646
Purchases of goods* BEEm (i) 1,273,332 716,603
Transactions with related companies:# BRERNAI IR G ¢
Sales of goods HEEM 0] 38 -
Purchases of goods * BEEm (i) 2,056,447 2,392,745
* These related party transactions also constituted connected * ZEMEATRZSIRE AR
transactions disclosable in accordance with the Listing Rules. BE - MMERATHREZBER
% °
# Related companies are companies under significant influence # BEARAXAEERKIERA

by the Group’s ultimate holding company.
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38. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 38.

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(continued)
Notes:

(i) These transactions were carried out with reference to the
prevailing market prices or, where no market prices were
available, at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up.

(i) Interest expenses arose from the loans from COFCO Finance
Corporation Limited (“COFCO Finance”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of COFCO, which are unsecured, bear interest
at rates ranging from 4.37% to 4.86% (2008: 5.04% to
6.57%) per annum and of which HK$14,765,000 (2008:
HK$146,277,000) is repayable within one year (note 30).

Transaction with a related party

Pursuant to certain licensing agreements entered into between
the Group and a related party, the Group was granted the
exclusive rights to use certain trademarks for its kitchen foods
business. The licensing fees for the current year and the prior
year were waived by the related party.

Outstanding balances with related parties
Except for (1) the loans of HK$14,765,000 (2008:
HK$146,277,000) from COFCO Finance, the terms of which
are detailed in note 30 to the financial statements, (2)

the amounts due to minority shareholders of the Group's
subsidiaries of HK$128,508,000 (2008: HK$73,136,000)
which are not repayable within one year from the end of

the reporting period, and (3) an amount due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$22,715,000 (2008: HK$22,679,000),
which are not repayable within one year from the end of the
reporting period, the remaining balances with the holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries, related companies and minority
shareholders of the Group's subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

A\ 122 5 ()

(b)

(c)

(%)
GEE
() EERHHERTHEHLE

SRUTE - BRI (ER T
2B REHEST -

(ii) ZEMNBRAZEERRP IR
BAERETAR([FEME])
(FIEAFRIZZ2EMBRAR) 2
BR ZSERREEM
BF 24372 % 4.86F (2008
£ S0ABEE657E)FE &
7 14,765,000 7% jC ( 2008 & -
146,277,000 70) AR —F R {E
&2 (MEE30) ©

H-ZHEALTZRS
BEREERMEALITIZET
B HE - AEBERBRFA
- ARAFARARERERET
wiE - MAFEEANR EFEZEH
REREWEALHS -

BEALT ZREZHRE

B (1) #P 12 BF 75 2 B 3K 14,765,000
7 7C (2008 £ : 146,277,000 7T )
(EFRF MR R EM5E30)
QEENREBREBIT —FRE
BrEMNAEENEB QR DEBRE
X TH 128,508,000 78 7T ( 2008 F :
73,136,000/ 70) » R3)EANRE
HRBA —FANEERE BN &RIE
fi% /A &) 318 22,715,000 7% 7T (2008
122,679,000 7T) oh - ERA
A AEMBAF - BEAR LK
SENBRARILEREZERBRE
TR 8 N E T B
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38.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

38.

i\ 122 5 (48)

Compensation of key management personnel of d AEEBXTEEEEBEASEZR
the Group [
Group
TEE
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZBREYRER 10,362 8,622
Discretionary bonuses IETEAT 4,364 3,270
Equity-settled share option expense R AR 4t EBE RS AR 2 4,116 4,605
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEI 366 329
Total compensation paid to key NFFTEEHEEBAS
management personnel Z RN 4azE 19,208 16,826
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 EEMeHE—THERNTBR
to the financial statements. EHMIEE8
Transactions with other state-owned enterprises (e) EHEHMBEBLEZRS

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively
"state-owned Enterprises”). During the year, the Group had
transactions with State-owned Enterprises including, but not
limited to, sales of and purchases of processed foodstuffs and
raw materials. The board consider that transactions with other
State-owned Enterprises are activities in the ordinary course of
the business, and that dealings of the Group have not been
significantly controlled or owned by the PRC government.

The Group has also established pricing policies for products
and services, and such policies do not depend on whether or
not the customers are State-owned Enterprises. Having due
regard to the substance of the relationships, the board of the
Company are of the opinion that none of these transactions

is a material related party transaction that requires separate
disclosure.
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39. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 39.
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

FHE A R Z R

AARETEMBATEE2009F12A3182

2009 are as follows:

HEMT

Places of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to
and operations registered capital the Company
Name MR MR ERTLEREE AATES Principal activities
e R 2 EEA BRABDL TEER
COFCO Food Penglai Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wines
PREERERERAR* Mainland China AE#1,000,00075 HEBHED
FE R ERM,
China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ RMB 180,000,000 100 Production and sale of
FERBEEEER DA Mainland China A R#180,000,0007T wine and beverage
A products
SLERIHEEEE
NSRRI
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Yantai) The PRC/ RMB108,000,000 100 Production and sale of
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AR%108,000,0007T grape wines
FRENEEE(ES)BRAF* FEL R E R SLERIHEEEE
COFCO Huaxia Great Wall The PRC/ RMB200,000,000 100 Production and sale of
Wine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AR #200,000,0007T grape wines
FIREERNEEBEERAT FEL R E R SLERIHEEER
COFCO Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ RMB11,760,000 100 Wholesale of grape wines
PIREEER AR Mainland China ARM11,760,0007T HEBHED
FE R ER,
COFCO Shaoxing Winery The PRC/ RMB68,670,000 100 Production and sale of
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AR#68,670,0007T Chinese yellow rice wines
FIERERARA A FEL R E R HERSEERRERE
Huailai COFCO Greatwall The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Production and sale of
Sungod Chateau Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AE#1,000,0007T grape wines
BRPEREZTBEERAE FE R ER HERHERED
Qinhuangdao Huaxia Greatwall The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100  Wholesale of grape wines
Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AR#1,000,0007T B0
RESEERWMEERRAA" FELRE R
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39.

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 39.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FEME A R Z w1 ()

Places of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to
and operations registered capital the Company
Name HEMAL ERTLEREE AATES Principal activities
i R i 2 HEMER BRABDL TEEK
Yantai Greatwall Wines and The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wines
Spirits Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AR#1,000,0007T "EEEH
BEARMBEHERR AR FE R E R
Zhangjiakou Jin Guan Wines Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Wine processing and
RROSTBEEBEERAF* Mainland China AFK#1,000,0007T bottling, sale and
FEL R E R distribution of
wine products
BEBMIREMR -
HERD HERER
COFCO Huaxiahong Wines & The PRC/ RMB3,000,000 80  Wholesale of grape wines
Spirits (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** Mainland China AR#3,000,0007T "EEEH
FiefE EADBE CRYD AR AR > B B A
Huailai Greatwall Wines Base The PRC/ RMB6,860,000 75 Plantation of vine
Development Co., Ltd.** Mainland China AR#6,860,0007T EiEEE
BRERBEEENAEFRAE FEL R E R
COFCO & Arrive Vine Plant The PRC/ EUR500,000 58.38 Plantation of vine and
(Yantai) R&D Co., Ltd.* Mainland China 500,00081 7T production of related
FrRENMEEEEER(ESR) FEL R E A products
HEER AR BEEEREERFEER
COFCO Junding Vineyard Co., Ltd.** The PRC/ RMB 140,000,000 55 Production and sale of
HREREIEEHEAR AR Mainland China A R#140,000,0007T grape wines
HEL R E R SERHEEEE
Shandong COFCO Junding World The PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 55 Sale and distribution of
Famous Chateaus Club Co., Ltd.** Mainland China AR#10,000,0007T grape wines, spirits, and other
IR ERTEE REH hE R ERM related products and storage
REEEBR AT BEN  EREBRR
I 3HE K 8H A
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Hong Kong Ordinary 65 Investment holding
Limited BB HK$2,463,217,002 REER
FE R AT B IR AR LR
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39.

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 39.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

R A w2 T ()

Places of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to
and operations registered capital the Company
Name MR MR ERTLEREE AT E Principal activities
e R 2 HEER BRABDL TEER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ US$30,000,000 65 Investment holding
(China) Investment Limited* Mainland China 30,000,00037T REER
FE R A AT (R B IR E FE R E R
BRA R
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ RMB40,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
(Jiangxi) Limited* Mainland China AR #40,000,0007T sale and distribution
FriE Rl D ATERE O ) IR AR FEL RE R SRR E « BUX MRS
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ RMB48,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
(Inner Mongolia) Limited* Mainland China AR #48,000,0007T sale and distribution
Frg Rl A AT R (A5 ) FE R E R, BREMERE © BXRHE
BRA R
Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/ US$5,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Co., Ltd* Mainland China 5,000,000 7T sale and distribution
HERRTOTESRBERAT FEL RE R SRR E « BUX MRS
Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/ Us$11,700,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited* Mainland China 11,700,000% 7T sale and distribution
BRI R O AT LB AR AR FEL RE R SRR E « BUX MRS
Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/ Us$8,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverage Co., Ltd.* Mainland China 8,000,000% 7T sale and distribution
R O AT SR AR A F)* FEL RE R SRR E « BUX MRS
Zhanjiang COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/ RMB23,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited* Mainland China AR #23,000,0007C sale and distribution
LR O AR R IR AR FEL RE A SRR E « BUX MRS
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ RMB60,000,000 52 Beverage bottling production,
(Xinjiang) Limited** Mainland China AE#60,000,0007T sale and distribution
FRE R R EAERR (o ) B IR A A) FEL R E R SRR E « BUX MRS
COFCO Coca-Cola Commerce & The PRC/ RMB3,000,000 52  Sale of beverage products
Trade (Xinjiang) Limited** Mainland China AR #3,000,0007T HEMRBER
HE R O ATERE (Fr@) B AR ** FE R E R
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39. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 39.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FEME A R Z w1 ()

Places of Percentage

incorporation/ Nominal value of equity

registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to

and operations registered capital the Company
Name HEMAL ERTLEREE AATES Principal activities
i R i 2 HEMER BRABDL TEEK
Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage The PRC/ US$19,500,000 48.75 Beverage bottling production,
Co., Limited** Mainland China 19,500,000% 7T sale and distribution
JERAT AT EEERRL B IR A A FEL R E R SRR E « BUX MRS
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ US$12,500,000 48.75 Beverage bottling production,
(Shandong) Limited** Mainland China 12,500,000 7T sale and distribution
FRE R QAR (LR ) BIR AR+ FE R ERM EEMAE  RRREE
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ US$5,000,000 48.75 Beverage bottling production,
(Jinan) Limited.** Mainland China 5,000,000 sale and distribution
Frte T O AT AR KL (R ) AR A R)** LB SRR E - X RIE
Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/ US$15,500,000 32.5 Beverage bottling production,
Co., Ltd** Mainland China 15,500,000 7C sale and distribution
RAER OB R AR > FE R ERM, SRR E « BUXRIEE
COFCO Foods Sales and The PRC/ RMB200,000,000 100 Distribution of consumer
Distribution Co., Ltd.* Mainland China AR#200,000,0007T pack edible oils and other
FRERMEHEARAR R E i consumer food products
DHNEERRM
REMEERR
COFCO Le Conte Food The PRC/ US$15,000,000 100  Production and distribution
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* Mainland China 15,000,000% 7T of chocolate products
FREEHRAORIDER AR BB BERDHOR NES
Shenzhen Le Conte Marketing The PRC/ RMB 15,000,000 90 Distribution of chocolate
Services Co., Ltd.** Mainland China AR®15,000,0007C products
RYmeFEHARAT > B R E A SETNRNER
COFCO Foods Management The PRC/ US$10,000,000 100  Research and development
Co., Ltd* Mainland China 10,000,000 7T in food, wines and
FRERMERARAFF HE R ER beverages, management
and consulting services
WRRFAER M  BREHE
EIE RS R

* Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises * 9‘\773%f§ft\¥
o Sino-foreign equity joint ventures ** FIEABR
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39. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 39. B AR Z TG (8)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the UEMBETEWBRRYHBARARBER
Company. B e
Except for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, the statutory audits PR e O] 2R AR A RSN - Rl
of the above subsidiaries were not performed by Ernst & Young Hong NaIEE BB LT KEAMEBL T KD
Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. BRABEE E MR B A RIEIT A ERIZ ©
40. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 40. BEEEEAFZ G
ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 December 2009 ARABEBEZNRIN2009F12 A318 25+
are as follows: BT
Percentage
of ownership
Nominal value Place of interest
of ordinary issued/ incorporation/ attributable
registered capital registration to the Group
Name BRTLTEREE HEMmR, REMELS Principal activities
] EMER FE it R BERERSHL TEXK
Nanjing BC Foods Company Ltd. US$19,000,000 The PRC 13 Beverages processing
AR ERMmARLA 19,000,000% 7T i BRI T
Hangzhou BC Foods Co., Ltd. US$20,000,000 The PRC 13 Beverages processing
MNP ERRBRAF 20,000,000%7¢ i SR T
CBPC Limited Ordinary Hong Kong 16.3 Procurement of raw
HK$10,000 B materials for Coca-Cola
TR bottlers in Mainland China
10,0007 7T FEFR B A A5 BT AT 42
SRR RS R R
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Ordinary Hong Kong 13.7 Investment holding
Holdings Limited HK$26,000 BB REEZR
EER
26,0007 7T
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40.

41.

216 China Foods Limited Annual Report 2009

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

In the opinion of the board, the Group is able to exercise significant
influence over the above companies as the boards of directors of these
companies comprise representatives of the Group, who participate in
the policy-making processes. Accordingly, they are accounted for as

associates of the Group.

All of the above associates are indirectly held by the Company.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

40.

FH = AR Z 5 ()

Exenn ARARELAFZEZETAN
SEZRE - 2HEBREHTBEIE - AEEE

k22

HERRBTHRERTE

SFWEEARE 2= NE -

Et -

PA LA LB S R RIS RAR R RIEERA -

41, FEFRIH 72 el TH

72009128310 » HHER& s TEMKRE

instruments as at 31 December 2009 are as follows: BT :
2009 2009F Group
Financial assets SREE rEE
Financial
Available- assets at fair
for-sale Held-to- value
financial  Loans and maturity through
assets receivables investments profit or loss Total
BAYE
AHHEZ EXR BEE HAB#HZ
SREE PERFRIE R E CREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TER TERT TET
Interests in associates (note 21) REE DB 2w (1) - 446,952 - - 446,952
Due from associates /N - 993 - - 993
Due from fellow subsidiaries BAZRMBARIKRZ - 4,417 - - 4,417
Due from the ultimate holding
company FEERARIRR - 5314 - - 5314
Due from the immediate holding
company ERERARRK - 355 - - 355
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss BATEIABRZRE - - - 16,728 16,728
Available-for-sale investments and AHEERER
related advances TEERT 206,596 - - - 206,596
Accounts and bills receivables TEYERT R E - 1,080,537 - - 1,080,537
Financial assets included in FABEMTUE - BE R
prepayments, deposits and Hit I Z
other receivables EREE - 273,455 - - 273,455
Held-to-maturity investments HAEZEIERE - - 98,252 - 98,252
Pledged time deposits EEBTE TR - 29,345 - = 29,345
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBE4SEER - 1,943,103 - - 1,943,103
206,596 3,784,471 98,252 16,728 4,106,047
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 41. BB H 4y Z & @b T H
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (44)
2009 2009 Group
TEE
Financial liabilities SEas Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERARTE
ZemasE
HK$°000
FHT
Due to associates YN E S| 102,291
Due to fellow subsidiaries RERKTBRRFIA 794,141
Due to the ultimate holding companies US v S NCIE /O 57,067
Due to related companies R EBE N R FRIA 455,766
Due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries RFB AT DEPRE 2 08 134,187
Loans due to fellow subsidiaries REIRMBRARER 14,765
Accounts and bills payables FERBRER R ZE 916,302
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAHAMEMARERE A E
and accruals TRIEE 1,707,547
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER 788,327
4,970,393
2008 20084 Group
REE
Financial assets CRVEE Available- Financial
for-sale assets at fair
financial Loansand  value through
assets receivables profit or loss Total
/NS |
AHHEZ 504 LIUNt:
SREE FEWFRIA CREE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHT
Interests in associates (note 21) REpERR 2 Em (EE21) - 411,951 - 411,951
Due from associates BN AR - 2,771 - 2,771
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEIGIENGIVSE - 230 - 230
Due from the ultimate holding
company REERARIRK - 5,994 - 5,994
Due from the immediate holding
company BREBRARIK - 160 - 160
Investments at fair value through BRTES A B
profit or loss Z"E - - 9,228 9,228
Available-for-sale investments and AT HERE KRG
related advances EAE 211,355 - - 211,355
Accounts and bills receivables EER R EE - 884,499 - 884,499
Financial assets included in STABNRE e
prepayments, deposits and KA FE W IR Y
other receivables SREE - 226,586 - 226,586
Pledged time deposits DHEAESRFER - 3,002 - 3,002
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEEER - 1,546,684 - 1,546,684
211,355 3,081,877 9,228 3,302,460
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 41, EHNE 22 L@ T H

CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (%)

2008 20084 Group
KEE

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

IREEAR AR TIE

ZEmARE
HK$'000
FAT
Due to associates IREE A RIFRIA 71,273
Due to fellow subsidiaries R B RM R ERIA 440,993
Due to the ultimate holding companies REIEIEA A BIRIA 36,410
Due to related companies REAEA RIFE 365,898
Due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries Y ENGIES Gk 73,136
Loans due to fellow subsidiaries RERMBRRER 146,277
Accounts and bills payables T ER R R 29 860,851
Financial liabilities included in other payables SPAEMENIE N ETEE
and accruals ZEMERE 1,124,782
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 101,678
3,221,298
2009 20095 Company
Financial assets cREE NG
Financial
assets at
Held-to- fair value
Loans and maturity through
receivables investments profit or loss Total
BAYE
EXR BEZE FIANB#EZ
e FMRE EREE met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET FET FERT
Interests in subsidiaries (note 20) M B Bl e (FiFE20) 6,183,859 - - 6,183,859
Due from the immediate holding
company EE S oNCIUE 165 - - 165
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and FTATERUE » ke R EM
other receivables EUFIEN S REE 4,701 - - 4,701
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 32,036 = = 32,036
Held-to-maturity investments BERIERE - 98,252 - 98,252
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss BAFEIIABRZEE - - 12,072 12,072
6,220,761 98,252 12,072 6,331,085
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 41. BRI #E 2 e T H
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (4)
2008 20084 Company
Financial assets EREE VAYNE]
Financial
assets at
fair value
Loans and through
receivables  profits or loss Total
BATE
=94 FIABREZ
FEd I EREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT
Interests in subsidiaries (note 20) RIB Rz % (fT7E20) 6,004,584 - 6,004,584
Due from the immediate holding company HRIERAFRK 165 - 165
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHE4%EER 19,968 - 19,968
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BRAFETNEZZRE - 7,204 7,204
6,024,717 7,204 6,031,921
Company
PN
Financial liabilities 2REeHE 2009 2008
20094 20084
Fiancial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
R A TR SRR
SEZ FIEZ
EAIN=NE TRBeE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Financial liabilities included in other FFAEMENTE N ETEEY
payables and accruals THREE 29,774 3,726
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER 500,000 -
529,774 3,726
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans and other loans, and cash and bank balances and time
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts
payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on minimising
potential adverse effects of these risks, with material impact, on the
Group's financial performance. The board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group'’s long term interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings with a floating interest rate. The effective
interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-bearing bank
loans and other borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 30.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group's equity.

42.

S5 J i A L R S BUR

AEEZETESHTABRETBIRTERK
HMEx M&ﬁi&ﬁﬂm%&mﬁf
o ZECHTAIZENARER X

E588% AEEHEETHMEREE
&EF‘ BlanEBER R R ENERER(EERA
HEBMmEL)

K%@Z@%ﬁIEHﬁF‘EZIEHW gl

CHNERER - FEERRMRBESR
@ e Kﬁgﬁﬁgﬂ B EETNEER
LZERR (HAEEZMBERBBREK
FE)ZBETNZE BEEERIYLFAE
ERZERE R 2K - BT -

=@

REBEAZOTISH KQ@ZH e EEH N

AAEE s REG ERTERMIDTRAE

Zﬁﬁﬁ%m K’ﬁlz‘aﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁk&ﬁﬁﬁ
B2 BRI S8 SR A RO MY FE 303 R -

aﬂTK%IBﬂRHU@ﬂ(%@BE B théz
FEI)RAEEERHNEAIGE 2 AEED
ZERIRE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
basis in profit (decrease)
points before tax in equity
BEZEH BADRF M,/
(TR) /() (")
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
2009 20095
+100 (3,833) (2,907)
-100 3,833 2,907
2008 20085
+100 (1,161) (951)
-100 1,161 951
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most of the
Group's monetary assets, liabilities and transactions principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
used any derivative to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group'’s
profit before tax and equity in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

42.

%a%i’%)ﬂl‘ﬁi%ﬂ H & K BUR

SNEEERBR
AEBEERREAREE - MALEZE
REHEHEE  AERRBAEBUET
RARMEHE - AEEL 8 F A EFHTEE
SRR E BT 2 SME R -

T RPN SR B 2 T A1 M) B M 2 BB T =< )
ez AIER B (A BN TS H R B
BEAREE) Z BHOEEE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
HK$/US$ in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
B,/ ETER BiADRER LM
EH(TR)  #i/Gad) (A *
% HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
2009 20094
If Renminbi weakens against Hong Kong dollar EANRE S ETERT 5 - (115,483)
If Renminbi strengthens against Hong Kong dollar EANRESETLEER Hi5 (5) - 115,483
If Renminbi weakens against United States dollar EANREH S TERT M 5 (5,117) (3,881)
If Renminbi strengthens against United States dollar AR EETER L5 (5) 5117 3,881
2008 2008
If Renminbi weakens against Hong Kong dollar EANRE S ETERT 5 - (125,919)
If Renminbi strengthens against Hong Kong dollar EANRESETEER Hi5 (5) - 125,919
If Renminbi weakens against United States dollar EANREH S TERT M 5 (1,333) (1,093)
If Renminbi strengthens against United States dollar AR EETTER H5 (5) 1,333 1,093
* Excluding retained profits * TEIERE RBER

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit before
tax and equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purpose.

EREFNZ2DITERRIAG B 2 e B
B2 AKERERBIHAGEN MERARF
BREZHEMN - AR 25 ENIRHREHRE
TIMERABTT
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. The carrying
amount of the accounts receivable represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and have available funding through bank and other borrowings to
meet its working capital requirements.

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Group including
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries, amount due to the ultimate holding company, amount
due to the immediate holding company, amounts due to related
companies, amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries,

and amounts due to associates, have been disclosed in notes 21, 30
and 41, to the financial statements. For accounts and bills payables,
they are generally on credit terms of one to three months after the
invoice date or the date of the six months after the bills were issued.
For the financial liabilities amounted to HK$1,707,547,000 (2008:
HK$1,124,782,000) included in other payables and accruals disclosed
on the consolidated statement of financial position, there are generally
no specified contractual maturities for these liabilities, and they are
paid on a regular basis or upon counterparty’s formal notification.
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AEEZ FERBRILTED - BRKRRZER
BEENASEEHERESREEZ&ARE
ERk - AEBEERIERE  BRAOAAZ
BEEELZEFPER -

REBEERERE
REEZBEDRFERAZRERASSE
BR - WEBRITREAMMEETAKE S MU
ERHEEESHE -

AEEZERBEZANEABETER
TRkEMES XRARMBARIE « K&
IR ARIFIA © BN E RS A RIS
REGERRIFIE - RKTEA B DB R
I ARREE R BIFIE - BRI RS KT
221 30 RMAEE - ERENERERE
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R AME @A o PIAE R
T8 N fERH B 15 A #01,707,547,0007% 7t (2008
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to

it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for capital
management during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31

,E!g%}ﬁhﬁﬁi%ﬂ H & K BUR

EXER
AEEEREANEERBRREAREY
BRE SN RBFHBROERLE - X
BHEBHERRRA BRI -

AEBeABCERESEERLERNER
WHEAEH AR o RS FHEERER
AEBRSHB LT FRENRESZE - IR
BERNTRRELEITHRG - 81220084
12A31 B K2009412 A31HILEER - A
MEREEMNBE  BEMBREY &L ([E

December 2009. &) o

Group AEE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITER R EMER 803,092 247,955
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERELEED (1,943,103) (1,546,684)
Pledged deposits IR 5K (29,345) (3,002)
Net cash position SEIREAR (1,169,356) (1,301,731)
Net assets BEFAE 6,885,139 6,324,974
Net assets, exclude net cash positions BEE  TREFReMRR 5,715,783 5,023,243
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43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. BB R Z ik
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BEMEN2010F3 A 20 REETSHER
the board on 29 March 2010. FRETIEE o
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LAR

Financial Summary

HF R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited consolidated financial statements and restated and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below:

AEEBER AR RARAE  BERSH
BERSEENES SRS SBREANHE
& WREHIRENSARBAERTE) - AR
BHRTX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
20094 20084 20074 20064 20054
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FTET FET TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(f&=50) & E2]))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS SERE TS
TURNOVER B 16,823,475 14,240,283 9,743,011 6,497,453 5,210,772
PROFIT FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES E R 943,190 662,716 917,353 494,437 462,177
Finance costs B AR (53,927) (31,382) (33,078) (45,426) (33,758)
Share of profits of associates FE(REE S N RS F 60,438 124,996 49,167 49,624 55,429
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Rt A A 949,701 756,330 933,442 498,635 483,848
Tax BiIR (229,396) (136,251) (135,792) (105,877) (81,967)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BELSEEL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ZEERF 720,305 620,079 797,650 392,758 401,881
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CARILEREER
Profit for the year from BRIEEEER
discontinued operations FNZ = - 239,769 831,909 283,355
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 720,305 620,079 1,037,419 1,224,667 685,236
Attributable to: FEET
Owners of the Company ARFHEBA 568,081 483,427 791,686 990,064 562,842
Minority interests LR RS 152,224 136,652 245,733 234,603 122,394
720,305 620,079 1,037,419 1,224,667 685,236
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BEELY
MINORITY INTERESTS RS
TOTAL ASSETS HWEE 12,495,840 10,447,863 8,992,460 21,798,297 15,618,988
TOTAL LIABILITIES BeE (5,610,701) (4,122,889) (3,358,959) (10,236,168) (8,144,552)
MINORITY INTERESTS SRR ER (1,402,240) (1,232,674) (1,074,850) (1,807,721) (1,644,509)
5,482,899 5,092,300 4,558,651 9,754,408 5,829,927
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CORPORATE

Information

~NAEH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ning Gaoning (Chairman)
Mr. Qu Zhe (Managing Director)
Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William

Mr. Zhang Zhentao

Ms. Luan Xiuju

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Jianping
Ms. Wu Wenting

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Qu Zhe

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda

SOLICITORS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
NEER )

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE

33/F

Top Glory Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Progressive Limited
26/F Tesbury Tower

28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinafoodsltd.com

A il

ESS-E-E s

FEAEARAT
HERIT(EE)ERAR
PEERRITRM AR AR
PETERITRO AR AR
PERTRMDBR AR
BRI BR A A
BARITERAR
=ZZERRURRITEED T

{0 i
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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www.chinafoodsltd.com
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FINANCIAL

Calendar
b A=

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS

Monday, 29 March 2010

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Friday, 4 June 2010 to Tuesday, 8 June 2010 (both days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Tuesday, 8 June 2010

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend: 3.88 HK cents per share
Proposed Final Dividend: 3.45 HK cents per share

Payable: Friday, 18 June 2010
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COFCO

BR2ZIF BRRR

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
Hh B £ AR 2 W

334 Floor, Top Glory Tower,

262 Gloucester Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BB S

ETITE2625%

BEF R 3318

Tel E5% 852 2833 0388

Fax {§E 852 2833 0380

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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